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Definitions

Bx

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires,
the following expressions shall have the following meanings.

“B2B”
[ B2B |

“B2C”
[ B2C ]

“Board”
-

“CG Code”
[dEERFAI
“Companies Ordinance”

INCIRESEN

“Company” or “the
Company”

ZAYNCIN

“Director(s)”

[E %]

“ESG”
[RE - -1HeakEeha]

“Group”
[A&EE ]

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
(&%

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK

dollars” or “HK$”
&)

RAFEHRA RXEAZBEMEN UTHAER
B NHHE -

business to business
TEHLE

business to customers

EEE=S

board of Directors

Exw

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

YR LT AR A B+ e X E R T A

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
and supplemented from time to time

FB AP F622F (R AHER) - EAEIEFT M AT

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability on 13 June 2000 and, except where the context
otherwise requires, all of its subsidiaries, or where the context refers to the time
before it became the holding company thereof, our Company’s present
subsidiaries

REFEBIZERER AR - R2000F6 A13HE B REFAMA L HERR % QA & (B
NESZSBREMNEMBEMBRARN (HMXBHEEKBERAFANNERE) RAAQ A
B M8 A A

the director(s) of the Company

ZN/NSTE- =5

environmental, social and governance
RIE HEgKEAR

the Company and its subsidiaries
/NS DR RY SN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of Mainland China
REE B RITHE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BREEEE
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Definitions (continued)

2% (E)

“Listing”
[

“Listing Date”

[E A H
“Listing Rules”
[ A8 Al

“Macau”

[HRFT ]

“Mainland China” or “PRC”

(e B A it | 5 [P

“Net Proceeds”
[FT15 s/ IB ) 58 |

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

I=AVNGE S 308 e
A&l

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[AR# |

“SFO”

(787 M EE 1R P

“Share(s)”
A% 7 ]

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Mty OB SR BT E AR BT

11 May 2018, the date which the Company’s shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on
the Stock Exchange

2018F5A11H  RARIRMNE R MW ERB ARG E ZE8 B H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time

BRMARIMBERABES LWHRA - ETRER M

the Macau Special Administrative Region of Mainland China

REDRPFIERIITER R

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this Annual Report,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
REARLANE  RAFHEMS  TEEEE RFIREE

the net proceeds from issuance of the Shares in connection with the Listing
#b T E TR B BT 1S SR R R

the pre-IPO share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 29 to the financial
statements

RABR2017F12A15B B R TRMAN B R ARBERIBERETS - FHEHRY
% ¥ 2= Mt 5229

prospectus of the Company dated 30 April 2018
RAFHER2018F4A30R 2 MR E R

Renminbi, the lawful currency of Mainland China

ARE FBEEEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended and supplemented from time to time

BREPIESNEEZ LE R (B TRKERT RfRx)

ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with a par value of HK$0.10 each
RNRABIR A G REEC.10/E JT#Y & i AR

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG 3



Definitions (continued)

2% (&)

“Share Option Scheme”

the share option scheme conditionally approved and adopted by the Company on

15 December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 29 to the financial

statements
[BE A w1 31
29

“Share Option Schemes”

KARR2017F12 158 BI&H L E R R AR BB ERT S -

EACE N EE]

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme

[ S BR8] BRA 3 E A B ROER 8 R B AR 8

“Shareholders”

(AR

holder(s) of Shares

EEUESTEDN

“Stock Exchange”
B 32 P EEBMARIMARRAR

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate”, “connected
person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling shareholder”,
“subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the
meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the

context otherwise requires.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this Annual
Report have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not
be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them.

The English translation of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations in Chinese or another language
included in this Annual Report is for identification purposes
only. To the extent there is any inconsistency between the
Chinese names of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations and their English translations,
the Chinese names shall prevail.

*  For identification purposes only
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Corporate Information

~EER
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Corporate Information (continued)

NEER (&)

PRINCIPAL BANKS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE IN BERMUDA
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Flats F—J, 11th Floor, Block 1

Kwai Tak Industrial Centre

15-33 Kwai Tak Street

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited

Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.twcoffee.com

STOCK CODE
2119
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Chairman's Statement

ETR®ME

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Tsit Wing International
Holdings Limited, | hereby present to you the Company’s
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Last year was a challenging year for all walks of life, mainly
because of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) worldwide which leads to the implementation of
various social distancing measures to curb the spread of the
virus in the PRC and Hong Kong, thus affecting the business of
the Group’s customers. According to the provisional data from
the Census and Statistic Department, the revenue for the Hong
Kong restaurant sector has decreased by 29.4% in 2020 as
compared to the previous year. Notwithstanding the
unfavorable market condition, the Group has been successful
in countering the crisis, as reflected in its Hong Kong sales
revenue achieving approximately 80% of the sales in 2019.
With the support of the subsidies granted by the Hong Kong
government, the Group has not implemented any lay-off plan,
and against the market norm, it has hired more staff to get
prepared and support the growth of business in the coming
future.

For the PRC market, the Group has faced tremendous
setbacks in the first half year due to the lockdown measures
implemented by the PRC government, and yet the PRC
economy has made speedy recovery in the second half of
2020. The Group’s revenue in the PRC for the second half of
2020 has achieved 100% of the sales of the corresponding
period in 2019.

During 2020, the Group has accelerated its sales model reform
to capture the surging online market by including the online
market element in its market analysis system and to optimise
its customer relationship system so as to accommodate the
market change from supply chain perspective. Other than its
sales via Tmall, the Group has also launched its sales via online
sales channels in Hong Kong and its own online platform
“Cherry and Leaf”. The Group will continue to refine its frontline
and back office systems to seize the online market demand.

BALRIR

AANERRBELEBBERERRATEETE
M ETN2MARQAFEZ2020F12 8318 1E&
BREENFR -

FREMRKFER(COVID-19)EER K KB
ETEXEEFEHBNEIESE: REBHRSE
I AAEMEEERT SEMREREE - <
AEEREPHNEBIITE - BRBEBUNSE
B EGR B R - 20205 - BB EREABRAR
EFETEKT204% - BEMRAXE BEREKE
HEB HEEIIZER2019F M 4I80% » 7] B3k
MERNLBREK SIPHREERFRENH
B ASEBYVEERTMNIEEE  EE¥m
miT BEEZE TRENMZFHFRRNER
BE-

PEMSEIE ASER ¥ FREFRBNE
MEE BAE e T AR E X B - AT = B A AL B 1£2020
FTHFERRME - R2020F T F - A%
B 2k 5 B Ay YR A EI20194F [ Hi /9100% ©

TE20204F - REEMRELEFERXHHE -
DEESREENE LTS EBKE LTS
TEMATEIMEGRBAREFPBEERREL -
HEEEASEREMSE R THERMEST
HEN AEBNERAEBFELEEREUR
BX&EFFA[Cherry and Leaf |[#EEE R o
REBGEBTSRHNEYRE  UEER
EWEHER-

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG 7




Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRHKE(E)

TOWARDS THE FUTURE

It has always been the Group’s strategy to expand its foods
business sector. The Group’s sale of frozen processed food
has relied on the processing services provided by its meat
suppliers. To be self-supporting in the supply chain, the
Group’s meat processing line will be put into operation by the
first half of 2021, aiming to satisfy different requirements of its
omnichannel customers.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has been under control in the PRC
and the PRC economy, in particular the Greater Bay Area, is
expected to advance in 2021. The Group will prioritise its effort
in four main areas in the Greater Bay Area with high gross
domestic product and consumption power, namely, (i) Zhuhai
and Zhongshan; (i) Guangzhou; (iii) Shenzhen; and (iv)
Dongguan.

The Board is optimistic that the pandemic will end soon. In the
meantime, the Group is undertaking preparatory works
prudently to pave the way for the Group’s long-term business
plans in Hong Kong and the PRC with a view to maximise the
return to its shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of the staff
members for their contribution and would also like to extend
my sincere gratitude to all of our stakeholders for their
remain confident in the Group’s
prospects and its ability to achieve exceptional milestones in
the coming years.

unwavering support. |

Wong Tat Tong
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Notwithstanding the tough business environment for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group has achieved
approximately 80% of the sales in 2019 (both in Hong Kong
and PRC). Given the unprecedented market conditions that the
Group has been facing, the performance was indeed fairly
acceptable. Other than focusing on its traditional B2B sales,
the Group has actively branched out its B2C sales through
various offline and online platforms. Further, the Group has
continued to broaden its products portfolio. It has launched a
“Hong Kong-style” softdrinks — Salty Lemon Soda in the
market. The Group will keep on to modifying its sales
channels, and developing new products so as to expand its
clientele base.

Other than the beverages products, the Group’s sale of frozen
processed food is mainly leveraging on its beverage solutions
client network. The business plan of its meat processing line in
Hong Kong was interrupted by the downturn of the market and
being optimistic of year 2021, the plan has been resumed.
With the self-supporting meat cutting and slicing facilities, the
Group would be able to better serve the needs of different
customers.

REVENUE

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations categorized by business segments for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

E 3 JC)

B E2020F12AB1H ILFE - BERKLERREK
- BEREEEFRENMNTERESNHEEER D
ZE2019F 1 4980% - ENAEE AR AARR
MMIZRE  ERAEGACBAEY - BRET
REGHB2BIHEIN  REBIEBERT K&
MEFAREHEINEB2CHE o AEBA
MR EMER  WEMS EHELDER K
— BB - AEESTEHEHERE
FEHEm RABEAEPE -

BREmIN AEENZRBHRRMBEENEE
BBEERRERBEFLBEET - BEAE
MITARMEHAERAMEAT RS MEE - M
BN PIE 202156 AT = - AT EIC E#H
E - EBEETNVARYRRE  AEEK
FRBaTREPNEK -

A

TREYNFE KL ETFE E22020%F K20194F
12A31B L FEREB D HE DM AEEH K
A

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31B LEE

2019

20194
(HK$°000) % of total
(THET) HBEADL

Beverage Solutions BB PR 623,261 97.6% 765,612 97.5%
Food Products B 15,246 2.4% 19,386 2.5%
Total #Et 638,507 100.0% 784,998 100.0%

CECTFEFY FBREABERERAR 9




Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations categorized by geographical location for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

TRE Y 5FE KL 5 E £2020F K20194F
1AL EERMBMNEAA S ANEER I
A

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31B LEE

2019
20194
(HK$°000) % of total
(T#ET) HHRBADLL

Hong Kong BE 418,663 65.6% 498,965 63.6%
Mainland China R K B 209,876 32.9% 267,032 34.0%
Others H it 9,968 1.5% 19,001 2.4%
Total 4=t 638,507 100.0% 784,998 100.0%

Note: Others include revenue derived from sales in Australia, Canada,
Macau, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore and Taiwan.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT
MARGIN

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit from
continuing operations of each of the Group’s business
segments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Bt HteRmRE RN meX RA - FRA
TFRE MR EHEENRA -

EMEERNR

TR B & & E T B 22020F K2019F
122AMA L FEASBERSER D BNAEE
EF :

Year ended 31 December
B ZEZ12A31BLEE

2019

20194
(HK$'000) % of total
(TAT) HREE L

Beverage Solutions BHR B RIE 259,235 98.5% 304,952 98.4%
Food Products B 3,819 1.5% 4,880 1.6%
Total st 263,054 100.0% 309,832 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWmR DN (&)

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit margin from
continuing operations of each of the Group’s business
segments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

TRE Y IFE KL ETEE £2020F K20194F
12A3IB L FEASEBZ XKD IENEAEER
FEFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2019
20194
Beverage Solutions BERREE R 41.6% 39.8%
Food Products R 25.0% 25.2%
Total 45t 41.2% 39.5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
total revenue from continuing operations of HK$638.5 million,
representing a decrease of HK$146.5 million, or 18.7%,
compared to the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease
in revenue was primarily attributable to the decrease in revenue
derived from beverage solutions business, and to a lesser
extent, the decrease in revenue derived from the food products
business. Gross profit from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$263.1 million,
representing a decrease of HK$46.7 million, or 15.1%,
compared to the year ended 31 December 2019. Gross profit
margin increased from 39.5% for the year ended 31 December
2019 to 41.2% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Beverage solutions

The Group provides a one-stop service for its commercial
customers that covers marketing analysis, recipe development,
sourcing, production, marketing and after sales services which
include regular customer training and equipment maintenance.
Such services are provided through the Group’s five
operational modules, which include () menu management and
recipe development, (i) strong global sourcing network, (iii)
automated product execution, (iv) sophisticated distribution
system for diverse customers, and (v) comprehensive customer
services.

B E2020F12A31H L FE - AEEEBFE
K RS B AB638.5H & B T 0 B EL £2019
F12A318 It F E R/ 214658 8 # T =k
18.7% s WARD D EZHRBERKREIRG X
BEEANKRARY  HAZRRBEBELHK
AN - B E2020F 12 A31H I FEMFHEL
BEBKIBSENAGIIEES T BEE
201912 H31H 1L F E Bk 246.78 & & 7T 3%
15.1% o EFI R BHEH E2019F 128318 L FE
#139.5% 7+ E & £2020F12 A31H It FEH
41.2% °

BERFE R
AEERBETEFRE{EBRET SN - HRHA
T RB-LE THEERLERRB(EE
EERBERIRREEE) N — AR -
ZERBEBAEERELERRBEHR 85
WEREERFRFAE ()8R EIREREH
i (EBEMEMRNIT (WAZTIEERPM
RHBTEEARS  RVMEENEP R -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

Revenue from the beverage solutions segment decreased by
HK$142.3 million, or 18.6%, from HK$765.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to HK$623.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in revenue derived from Hong Kong due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 since January 2020. Gross profit
decreased by HK$45.8 million, or 15.0%, from HK$305.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to HK$259.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly in line
with the decrease in revenue. Gross profit margin of the
beverage solutions business increased from 39.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to 41.6% for the year ended 31
December 2020, primarily because of the relatively higher
gross profit margin generated from tea products.

Food products

The Group offers frozen processed food to renowned brands
and its own frozen processed food brand “Papa Chef” under
“original equipment manufacturer” (OEM) arrangement.

Revenue from the food products segment decreased by
HK$4.2 million, or 21.6%, from HK$19.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to HK$15.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was primarily
because of the decrease in revenue derived from Hong Kong.
Gross profit decreased by HK$1.1 million or 22.4% from
HK$4.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
HK$3.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
gross profit margin decreased from 25.2% for the year ended
31 December 2019 to 25.0% for the year ended 31 December
2020.

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS
Hong Kong

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated in
Hong Kong decreased by HK$80.3 million, or 16.1%, from
HK$499.0 million in the year ended 31 December 2019 to
HK$418.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease in revenue generated in Hong Kong was primarily
because of decrease in sales of coffee, tea and milk products
as a result of decrease in customers’ demand.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWmR DN (&)

Mainland China

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated in
Mainland China decreased by HK$57.1 million, or 21.4%, from
HK$267.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
HK$209.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease in revenue was primarily due to the decrease in sales
volume of instant beverage mix products.

Others

In addition, the Group also sells a small portion of our
products to Macau and other overseas regions including
Australia, Canada, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore and Taiwan
through distributors. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
revenue generated in others decreased by HK$9.0 million, or
47.4%, from HK$19.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to HK$10.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The decrease in revenue was primarily as a result of the
outbreak of COVID-19, which has reverberated across the
global economy.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

Other than focusing on the Group’s core business as an
integrated B2B coffee and black tea solutions provider in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China, it will continue to strengthen
its market penetration of the food products and the meat
processing line is expected to be launched by the second half
of 2021. Going forward, the Group targets to cater the needs
of its omnichannel customers by itself, instead of relying on the
processing support of its meat suppliers.

Seeing the great potential in the Greater Bay Area, the Group
will focus on its development in four main areas, namely, (i)
Zhuhai and Zhongshan; (i) Guangzhou; (iii) Shenzhen; and (iv)
Dongguan. These four areas are showing the highest gross
domestic profit and consumption power in the Greater Bay
Area. The Group believes that by taking root and enhancing its
presence in these areas would entail more opportunities in the
future.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has accelerated the change in
consumption pattern from offline to online. The Group will
continue to strengthen its sales via online platforms and to
refine its frontline and back office systems to seize the online
market demand.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

Year 2020 was a year full of challenges, and yet the Group has
been undertaking preparatory works with diligence to pave the
way for the Group’s long-term business plans in Hong Kong
and the PRC with a view to maximise the return to the
Shareholders. With the introduction of vaccines of COVID-19
and the pandemic easing off, it is expected that the economic
recovery will be beneficial to the Group’s performance and the
Group is well positioned to ride on the recovery memorandum.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a company, Tsit
Wing Cold Chain Solutions Company Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was incorporated in
Hong Kong on 7 July 2020.

Two subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong,
namely TWG Heritage Tea Company Limited and Tsit Wing
(Hong Kong) Frozen Food Company Limited were deregistered
pursuant to section 751 of the Companies Ordinance:

Nature of business prior
to dissolution

R SR E

Name of Company

ACIEE

BE2020F FEm kBl - RSB —E R
EBTE RAEBEEEARTENRBER
FTEETEE BREERZF ALK - E
COVID-19& Mt REIBAF&  FBHKESE
BREAEENKRBENRASEC EEHL
FEEEMEEMmLE -

MEBARINERE

B E2020F12A81HILLGFE  —MBAIESE
RRRMERBRAAINAGE (KA A HE
2EMBRT)R2020F7A7TE EEF B MK

AV

RRABIMEREBEMAILAME AR TWG
Heritage Tea Company Limited & 5 45 (&%)
RRRMAMRDRDRIEBECR RHERDNE75114

Date of Deregistration Nature of proceeding

R

BFHEE

TWG Heritage Tea Company
Limited

No business operation

BERGEE

Tsit Wing (Hong Kong) Frozen
Food Company Limited
R (HE) RRREM
BIR QA

No business operation

BEGEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by HK$146.5 million, or
18.7%, from HK$785.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to HK$638.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in demand from the customers of the Group for its
products as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19, which
resulted in the decrease in sales volume of the products of the
Group.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by HK$99.7 million, or
21.0%, from HK$475.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to HK$375.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease in the cost of sales was
primarily as a result of the decrease in raw material costs for
the beverage solutions products, which in turn was mainly
caused by the decrease
procurement price for the Group’s major raw materials.

in overall sales volume and

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit
decreased by HK$46.7 million, or 15.1%, from HK$309.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to HK$263.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group’s
gross profit margin increased from 39.5% for the year ended
31 December 2019 to 41.2% for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group’s other income and gains, net increased by
HK$10.4 million from HK$5.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to HK$15.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The increase was primarily as a result of (i)
government subsidies received during the year ended 31
December 2020, including HK$10.2 million wages subsidies
under the Employment Support Scheme of the Anti-epidemic
Fund operated by the Hong Kong government, and (ii) rental
waivers granted from lessors on the Group’s various office
premises and warehouse.

B 7% [ B8
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NEBHWABEE2019F12A31B IHEEH
785.06 & B TR V146,568 BB L H18.7%E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased by
HK$8.7 million, or 7.5%, from HK$115.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to HK$107.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to decrease in (i)
marketing and promotion expenses, and (i) logistics expenses,
which were generally in line with the decrease in revenue.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by HK$4.9
million, or 6.2%, from HK$79.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to HK$74.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease was primarily a
decrease in staff costs, which reflected the decrease in bonus
provision in connection with the Group’s performance.

result of

Other Expenses, Net

The Group’s other expenses, net decreased by HK$1.3 million,
or 25.5% from HK$5.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to HK$3.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease was primarily as a result of
non-recurring loss on deregistration of subsidiaries recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2019, which partially offset
by increase in write-off of trade receivables.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by HK$2.1 million, or
60.0%, from HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to HK$1.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The decrease was primarily as a result of a reduction in the
outstanding balance of interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense decreased by HK$6.5 million,
or 30.2%, from HK$21.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to HK$15.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, mainly due to the decrease in profit before
tax in Mainland China. The Group’s effective income tax rate
decreased from 19.3% for the year ended 31 December 2019
to 16.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Profit for The Year from Continuing Operations and
Net Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year
from continuing operations decreased by HK$13.0 million, or
14.5%, from HK$89.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to HK$76.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Group’s net profit margin from continuing operations
increased from 11.4% for the year ended 31 December 2019
to 12.0% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Loss from A Discontinued Operation

Loss from a discontinued operation for the year ended 31
December 2019 was HK$12.5 million, primarily a result of loss
on disposal of frozen meat business in November 2019 which
mainly represented the loss of goodwill associated with the
business of the discontinued operation.

Capital Expenditure and Commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred
additions of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of HK$24.1 million (2019: HK$30.7 million) and HK$7.0
million (2019: Nil), respectively. A substantial portion of the
Group’s capital expenditures were incurred in relation to the (i)
purchase of coffee machines which were leased to the Group’s
customers, (i) production machineries, (i) enhancement of
facilities, and (iv) prepaid lease payments for a piece of
leasehold land situated in Dongguan, Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitment
of HK$4.3 million (2019: HK$6.2 million), mainly comprising the
related contracts of capital expenditure in production
machineries and enhancement of information technology
system and hardware. It will be financed by internal resources
of the Group.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total interest-bearing
bank borrowings of HK$12.1 million (2019: HK$26.2 million), all
of which were denominated in HKS.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$401.2 million, representing a decrease of HK$1.9 million as
compared with net current assets of HK$403.1 million as at 31
December 2019. The decrease in net current assets was
mainly attributable to decrease in cash and cash equivalents,
which was partially offset by decrease in trade payables,
interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities from
settlement.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$276.8 million
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$315.2 million). The Board
is of the opinion that the financial position of the Group is
robust and the Group has sufficient resources to support its
operations and meet its foreseeable capital expenditures.

Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2020, the capital structure of the Group
comprised share capital and reserves.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

The Group did not have any concrete plan for material
investments or capital assets for the forthcoming year.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Contingent Liabilities
Saved as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements
below, there were no other contingent liabilities.

Litigation Matter

In April 2020, the Group has filed a legal action against a third
party in the PRC for infringement of trademark and improper
competition. The hearing will be held in July 2021 in the
People’s Court of Shanghai, the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, on the basis of total interest-bearing
bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent, the Group’s gearing ratio was 2.2% (2019: 4.8%). The
decrease in gearing ratio was primarily due to a reduction in
the outstanding balance of interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has transactional Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the unit’s functional currencies.
The majority of the Group’s foreign currency purchase
transactions are denominated in the United States dollars. On
the other hand, the sales and disbursements are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
management is closely monitoring foreign exchange exposure
of the Group. The Group will consider to adopt a foreign
currency hedging policy for significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

currency exposures.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rate. The Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

Credit Risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables arises
from default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

assets

EEAGBHER

720205F12 H31H « KET BIRITIE BB EERR A
BARHEAEGERZ  AEEMNEERERL
K E2.2%(2019F 1 4.8%) BEEBELET
BAOTEARFTERITERREBLELR D
FTER

S s =L B

AEBAZRXZGEERAR FRARREIRIRE
SEBUNENGEEEUINERETESR
MEL - AEBERBOINERBER HAX T
Bem—hH HERIBEIZEUNETRA
REFE- - EREZVEEAEENINER
2o WMERE  AEBKEEAREANINEER
PREXSMNE S0 BOR

A = = B

AEBERGNTSNXEPRARETERARE
Be¥ RRITERER AEBEREMNXK
O WHRERRRHZELHPERMEXER -

FERR
AEBEEHRERAAEERINE=ZTTETT
R AERERRRBETE  FAERREEHE
TRHENEFP YAREXEERERF It
S ARBERBEERERFAGS  WEEY
ERARERER

AEBEMMeREE(BERASRBREEFE
W FEABENFIE REREMRERENS
MEE)NGEERRKAETEYN KoM A
HERZETANKEE-

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG 19




Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. In
the management of liquidity risk, the Group has been
maintaining a cash pooling system where excess liquidity is
equalised internally through inter-group accounts. Depending
on the specific requirements of each funding agreement,
funding for the Group’s operating companies may be sourced
directly from the Group’s bankers or indirectly through the
Company.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING
The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date. After the full exercise of the
Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus) and after
deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses,
the Net Proceeds amounted to HK$232.6 million.

In light of the change in market and economic condition with
the uncertainty in the economy recovery in Southeast Asia, the
Board has resolved to revise the use of unutilised Net
Proceeds from allocating the Net Proceeds originally
designated for expansion into Southeast Asia to (i)
strengthening business portfolio; and (ii)
capital. The Board is of the view that the change in use of Net
Proceeds would allow the Group to utilise its financial
resources in a more beneficial and effective way.

general working
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

The utilisation of Net Proceeds as at the date of this Annual
Report, the revised allocation of the Net Proceeds and the

RAFEHRBE  FAEFRIBEFRME  ASHE
FENKEBITRERLRBAMB IR FENTE

expected timeline on the utilisation of the Net Proceeds are as HiFF@I &R T :
follows:
Remaining Remaining
Utilisation as at balance before  balance after
Original the date of this revised revised Expected timeline for utilising the
allocation  Annual Report allocation allocation  remaining unused Net Proceeds
HEAFHEE RKETIRS LETIEZ BAKTADAMGIEREZ
FES B HBAER B #E EHBEX
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TER TER
Strengthening business portfolio 93,044 78,740 14,304 29,304 Before 31 December 2022
mEEBES 72022124318 Z A
Capital investment of machineries 46,522 46,522 - - N/A
and equipment
BERRENERRE il
Expansion into Southeast Asia 23,261 332 22,929 — N/A
ARZEREEMS TiER
Product customisation and 23,261 8,775 14,486 14,486 Before 31 December 2022 (Note)
development
EmE R kA% 142022612 4318 2 Al (Fit )
Support sales and marketing 23,261 23,261 - - N/A
XEHEREH TiER
General working capital 23,261 23,261 = 7,929 Before 31 December 2021
—REEES 720214124318 Z A
Total 232,610 180,891 51,719 51,719
st
Note: The launching plan of the tea machines has been further delayed — Ffft : #HEH XKW EIBEEE  FRIIEH S

THETIRBNEREE M BEBAER
THH B 2 TR HRRS A R B 1 18 £2022F 12 A 31
E| o

as some of the machinery spare parts are sourced from
European countries and the expected timeline for utilising the
relevant Net Proceeds is extended to 31 December 2022.

RAFHRAY  RPAASEHRBFECFEAR
AR MRITIMERITAER EHER -

The unutilised Net Proceeds have been placed as bank
balances/time deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong as at
the date of this Annual Report.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREAEEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wong Tat Tong (B £ E), aged 67, has been a Director since
6 July 2000 and was redesignated as an executive Director on
4 September 2017. He is the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for managing and formulating overall strategic
planning and development of the Group. Mr. Wong has joined
the Group for over 40 years since May 1978. Mr. Wong is a
director of several major operating subsidiaries of the Group
and also a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee (re-designated as the chairman of the
nomination committee on 10 December 2020). Being
responsible for the day-to-day management and overall
strategic planning and development of the Group, Mr. Wong
has been playing an important role in the Group’s development
and growth over the past 40 years.

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist College (presently known as the Hong Kong
Baptist University). He is the Permanent Honorary President of
the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the Permanent
Honorary President of The Hong Kong and Kowloon Provisions,
Wine & Spirit Dealers’ Association Limited, a member and a
director of the committee of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and the representative of Tsit Wing Coffee
Company, Limited’s membership in The Hong Kong Chinese
Importers’ and Exporters’ Association.

Wu Kam On Keith (5% %), aged 46, has been a Director
since 22 January 2010 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 4 September 2017. He is the group chief operation
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined
the Group in 2005 and is primarily responsible for assisting in
strategic planning and business and corporate development of
the Group and overseeing sales operations of the Group. Mr.
Wu is a director of several major operating subsidiaries of the
Group. He is also the company secretary of all of the Group’s
subsidiaries which are incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu has
over 23 vyears of experience in finance and accounting
management.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Wu was awarded the Postgraduate Certificate in
Sustainable Value Chains from the University of Cambridge in
May 2019, admitted as a fellow and was awarded the
Chartered Governance Professional Qualification of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries in 2018. He obtained a
degree of master of Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a bachelor of arts (honours) in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wu is a fellow and an authorized supervisor of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow and a certified
tax advisor of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and was
elected as a fellow with designations as Chartered Secretary
and Chartered Governance Professional of The Institute of
Chartered Governance Institute (United Kingdom).

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director of
Fulum Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1443), a restaurant
chain serving Chinese cuisine. He was an independent non-
executive director of (i) Hao Bai International (Cayman) Limited
(stock code: 8431), a Hong Kong-based contractor specialized
in design, procurement and installation services of the water
circulation systems from January 2017 to April 2020; and (i)
Sanbase Corporation Limited (stock code: 8501), an interior fit-
out solutions provider focusing on providing services to clients
whose offices are predominately situated in Grade A offices in
Hong Kong from December 2017 to February 2020.

Fan Yee Man (¥#&#%), aged 40, was appointed as an
executive Director on 4 September 2017. Ms. Fan is the group
chief financial officer of the Company. She joined the Group in
2012 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall
financial position and accounting matters, information system
and operation control of the Group. Ms. Fan is a director of
several major operating subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Fan has over 15 years of experience in finance and
accounting management. Ms. Fan obtained a bachelor of
business administration (honours) in accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Fan is a member and a fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Certified Public Accountant certified by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERGAREEE (&)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Tang Kwai Chang (B & &), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee.

Mr. Tang has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and audit risk management. Mr. Tang obtained a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist College
(presently known as Hong Kong Baptist University).
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an honorary member of the Court of Hong Kong
Baptist University and a member of the disciplinary panel of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
convenor of Financial Review Panel of the Financial Reporting
Council. Mr. Tang was conferred with the Honorary University
Fellowship by the Hong Kong Baptist University in September
2017.

He is a

Mr. Tang is currently an independent non-executive director of
HKR Limited (stock code: 480), a company
engaging in property development and investment and FIT Hon
Teng Limited (stock code: 6088), a company engaging in the
development and production of interconnect solutions and
related products.

International

Wong Man Fai (E3X#), aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee. Mr. Wong
has over 30 years of experience in the insurance industry. Mr.
Wong obtained his bachelor of science and master of business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of Starr International Insurance (Asia) Limited, a private
company engaging in insurance business, in October 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERGAREEE (&)

Lok Kung Chin, Hardy (B£#8 IE), aged 71, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2020.
Mr. Lok graduated in Civil Engineering from the University of
Manchester Institute of Science & Technology. He is a member
of both the Institution of Civil Engineers and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Manager. Mr. Lok is the
Chairman of The Sun Company, Limited and has over 50 years
of experience in building and engineering construction work.
Mr. Lok has been an independent non-executive director of
Kowloon Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 00034)
since January 2002.

Save as disclosed herein, there are no other matters
concerning the Directors that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders nor is there any other information
relating to the Directors that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Leung Kim Ming (2 &l 8), aged 54, is the general manager
— Mainland China. He joined the Group in 2008 and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations
in Mainland China, including supply chain, general affairs, B2B
sales, B2C sales, resources and administration
departments. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in
finance and accounting management. Mr. Leung obtained a
graduation diploma in business administration from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (presently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) and a bachelor of arts in accountancy from the
University of Bolton (in the United Kingdom).

human
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE (&)

Kam Chun Pong Bernard (£ & #f), aged 64, is the group
operating officer — marketing and group operating officer —
sales B2C. He has been working for the Group for more than
six years and is primarily responsible for coordinating and
overseeing marketing affairs of the Group and B2C sales
related affairs. Mr. Kam has more than 20 years of experience
in marketing, sales management and business development
with a focus in the fast moving consumer products industry.
Mr. Kam obtained a higher diploma in business studies from
Hong Kong Polytechnic (presently known as Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and a diploma in marketing from the
Institute of Marketing (in the United Kingdom). He also
completed a ten-week international general management
program, namely Program for Executive Development at the
International Institute for Management Development in
Switzerland.

Hau Ka Wai (X% Z), aged 43, is the Group Operating Officer
— Human Resources & Administration. She joined the Group in
2007 to 2017 and recently rejoined in 2020, and oversees the
human resources and administration department. She is mainly
responsible for corporate social responsibility and overall
human resources strategy planning. Ms. Hau has over 20 years
of experience in human Hau obtained a
Bachelor of Business from Holmes Institute.

resources. Ms.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wu Kam On Keith (5f#8%), aged 46, is the company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for facilitating the
procedures/activities of the Board and the Board committees
as well as good communication flow amongst the Board
members, shareholders and senior management of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
A | Py N
TRERARE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company is firmly committed to a high level of corporate
governance and adherence to the governance principles and
practices emphasising transparency, independence,
accountability, responsibility and fairness. These principles and
practices are reviewed and revised regularly as appropriate to
reflect the ever changing regulatory requirements and corporate
governance development. The Board believes that the high
standards of corporate governance is the essential core for
sustaining the Group’s long term performance and value
creation for our shareholders, the investing public and the other
stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code, except for code provision A.2.1 which states that the
roles of chairman and chief executives should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Related
details are set out in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management power of the
Company to the executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. However, full delegation is not allowed for some
specific matters under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory requirements, and the
final decisions on those specific matters are required to be
taken by the whole board.

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to
creating value for our shareholders. The Board is responsible
for developing the strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning is one of the
Board’s important functions for aligning mission and vision and
a lot of focus and attention have been devoted to such a plan.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

tRERB®HRE (H)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board has performed above duties during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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BEa®mE (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition

Currently, our Board comprises six directors, including three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The current composition of our Board is as follows:

Membership of board

BEEg(E)

EEeREAR

Bl EEEHANBEFAK  BRE=ZRT
EER-RBUNTES -ESSHREK
BT

Name of Director committee(s) EEHE EEEeZEERE

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of nomination committee HEELAE REZLZBEGNKE
(Chairman & Chief (re-designated as the Chairman (FERITBAEE) (72020912810
Executive Officer) of nomination committee on BT ARS

10 December 2020) ZEEXRE)
Member of remuneration FTMEZEEKE
committee

Mr. WU Kam On Keith BB 87 &2 5 A

Ms. FAN Yee Man s ]

Independent non-executive Directors: HUIHHITEE -

Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Chairman of audit committee HEZLE BERLZEQERE

Member of remuneration TMEEEKE
committee

Mr. CHOW Alexander Member of audit committee EREY- 5 EZZEENKE
Yue Nong Chairman of nomination committee (72020F10H5H RELZEGERE
(passed away on 5 )

October 2020)
Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of audit committee T LA ERZEENKE
Chairman of remuneration FTMEEEER
committee
Member of nomination committee REEZEGKE

Mr. Lok Kung Chin, Member of audit committee % AN IE A& EZEZEENE

Hardy (appointed on  Member of nomination committee (732020¢12ﬂ1OE| REZEZEGKE

10 December 2020)

The designation, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each
other, senior management of the Company or substantial or
controlling Shareholder are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this Annual Report. In addition, a list
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company at www.twcoffee.com.

The independent non-executive Directors represent half of the
Board which exceeds the Listing Rules requirement for one-
third.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TtEERHRE (F)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition (Continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and

effective delivery of the Board functions.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in May 2018. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, when reviewing the
composition of the Board and considering the nomination of
new Directors, the Nomination Committee will, by referring to
the business model of the Group and specific needs from time

to time, take into account a number of factors, including
gender, age, cultural and educational background or
professional experience, skills, regional and industry

experience, background, race and other qualities, etc.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKSE (&)

BOARD DIVERSITY (Continued)

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board by maintaining the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognising and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. Board appointments will continue to
be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The following chart shows the diversity profile of the
Board as at 31 December 2020:
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TRERKRSE (F)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wong Tat
Tong (“Mr. Wong”) is currently the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer, responsible for formulating the
overall business development strategy and planning of the
Group. In view of Mr. Wong having been responsible for the
overall management of the Group since 1978, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Wong taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority, accountability and independent decision-
making under the present arrangement will not be impaired
because of the diverse background and experience of the three
independent non-executive Directors. Further, the Audit
Committee has free and direct access to the Company’s
external auditor and independent professional advisers when it
considers necessary. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in such circumstance. Except for the deviation from
the said CG Code Provision A.2.1, the Group’s corporate
governance practices have complied with the CG Code.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board met six times, four of which were held in person
and the remaining two via teleconference, in the financial year
of 2020. Various matters such as overall business plans,
financial and operating performance of the Group, audit
planning, annual budget, the financial reports and corporate
governance related policies and practices for the Group have
been discussed, reviewed and approved (where applicable)
during the meetings. Notice of at least 14 days was given to all
Directors for regular board meetings in order to give them an
opportunity to attend. For other board meetings, notice was
given in a reasonable time in advance.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

All' Directors have full and timely access to all
information in relation to the Company. There are established
procedures for Directors to seek independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities,
where appropriate, at the Company’s expenses.

relevant

During the year, Directors have made active participation in the
Board meetings and Board committees meetings.

The minutes of the Board meetings and all other committee
meetings recorded the matters considered by the Board or the
committees (as the case may be) in sufficient details. All the
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
upon prior appointment for inspection by any Directors,
auditors or any relevant eligible parties who are entitled to have
access to such information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an
Audit Committee and a Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference.

EEgREF(A)
FAEFNI2EMERLESERALD

2 FEIRRER - A2 TEﬁ%m&F%%%
HEANERT  ABITHBEREEMmH;
BUSXER BAMKAAZM -

FR-EZHEEBS

AA
EEFI

%o

CeRLHEMBRETERMNEREEL
fﬁ‘ﬂi%%@ﬁ%%’* HEZ B (RFBERME)
EBER MESHCHOHARAMER
7o EMEE ZBOIEABEEEEBAL
AERRBHREHZEEMN -

E%éﬁ%
EFxgBE I CRUFMEZES BERZEEM
REZBE SEFEZHESRE -

S

Board of Directors

Audit Committee
EZER

Remuneration Committee

FMZBE

=
-~ B8

Nomination Committee
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(all independent non-executive Directors)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) BEEZXE E e (&)
Remuneration Committee FMZEES
Membership of Remuneration
Name of Director Committee EEgA FHEEERE
Executive Director: HITESE -
Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of remuneration BEELAE FMEEEKE
(Chairman & Chief committee (EERITHAEH)
Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHHITEE -
Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Member of remuneration HEZEE FMEZEEKE
committee
Mr. WONG Man Fai Chairman of remuneration EXELAE FTMEESER
committee

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including the advice of independent
professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible to consider
and approve the remuneration packages of Directors and
Senior Management of the Group, including salaries, benefits in
kind and bonuses; bonus schemes and other long-term
incentive schemes, including share option and other plans.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings, both in
person, in the financial year of 2020. Each member’s
attendance record during the year is shown on page 41 of this
Annual Report.
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TRERHE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2020

Reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group, namely
KPI Policy, Performance Management Policy, Salary
Review Policy and Annual Performance Policy;

Reviewed the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31
December 2020;

Reviewed the updated organization chart of the Group;

Reviewed the remuneration package of the key
management of the Group; and

Reviewed the bonus scheme of the Group.

The members of the Remuneration Committee have discussed

the above matters during their

meetings and made

recommendations to the Board for approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) BEEZE E 2 (&)
Audit Committee EVEEE
Name of Director Membership of Audit Committee @EZ#E EREEERE
Independent non-executive Directors: BB ITESE -
Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Chairman of audit committee HEZE4E BERLZERERE
Mr. CHOW Alexander Member of audit committee SR e ERZEENKE
Yue Nong (passed (7202010858
away on 5 October )
2020)
Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of audit committee E NP S A BEZEZEGNKE
Mr. Lok Kung Chin, Member of audit committee BEASIE%R A EZEZEgNE
Hardy (appointed on (72020124108
10 December 2020) BZE)

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and their
audit fees; meeting with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit; reviewing the Company’s
financial statements and interim and annual reports before they
are submitted to the Board; discussing problems and
reservations arising from the interim review and final audit, and
any other matters the external auditor may wish to discuss, and
reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter and
management’s response; considering any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and giving due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s external auditor and compliance
officer (if any); reviewing the internal audit programs and to
ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditor,
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; discussing the risk management and
internal control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company; and acting
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.
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TEEERERE (HF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Board has delegated the risk management responsibilities
to the Audit Committee to oversee and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures that
have been in place.

The Audit Committee met three times, all in person, in the
financial year of 2020. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 41 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2020

° Reviewed the 2020 preliminary interim results
2020 interim financial report; 2019
preliminary annual results announcement and annual
statements with management and external

auditor, and recommended their adoption by the Board;

announcement;

financial

° Reviewed with the internal audit department their work in
relation to the Company’s internal control systems and the
periodic internal audit reports and approved the 2020
internal audit plan;

o Reviewed the Dividend Policy and made recommendations
to the Board for approval;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2020 (Continued)

38

Met with the external auditor to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-
audit services provided by the external auditor, together
with its respective fees;

Reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function and compliance with the CG Code;

Reviewed the business budget for the financial year of
2021,

Reviewed the policies of the Group over trade receivables
and discussed about the impact of the legal proceedings
in which the Group was involved on the financials and
operation of the Group; and

Held private session with external auditor in the absence

of executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEXZE a g(#E)
Nomination Committee REZEE"
Membership of Nomination

Name of Director Committee EEgR REZEEEHE

Executive Director: HITEE !

Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of nomination committee HEEEAE REZLZBEENKE
(Chairman & Chief (re-designated as the Chairman (EEFITHAAER) (F22020%F
Executive Officer) on 10 December 2020) 128108 E AT

BER)

Independent non-executive Directors: BB ITESE

Mr. CHOW Alexander Chairman of nomination committee WmEEAE RAZTEEER
Yue Nong (passed (7202010 A5H
away on 5 October A it)

2020)

Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of nomination committee T EEAE REZEBEEKE

Mr. Lok Kung Chin, Member of nomination committee BEASIESE & REZLZBEEGNE
Hardy (appointed on (720205125108
10 December 2020) EET)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee also reviews the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender and age) of the Board; Director’'s time
commitment; policies in relation to nomination of Director and
Board diversity. The Committee would identify and determine
the measurable objectives for achieving board diversity and
monitor any progress made in achieving such measurable
objectives. The Committee would also recommend to the
Board on appointment or reappointment of and succession
planning for Director and chief executive officer.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character, qualifications, experience, independence
and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity,
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

where

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in person in the
financial year of 2020. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 41 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the financial year

of 2020

° Reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the mix of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and
experience of the Directors) of the Board;

° Reviewed the execution effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy and made recommendations to the Board for

approval;

° Assessed and confirmed the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors; and

° Reviewed and recommended the appointment and rotation
of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TRERKRSE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EExZzEg (&)
Summary of work done during and for the financial year R R 5202081 B % & 52 B8 89 T 1E#F ZE (/&)
of 2020 (Continued)

Attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings, MR20208IBEE  SEERNEEL S - H M
Remuneration Committee meetings, Audit Committee meetings, ZEE€ &€& BEXZEC TR - REZTEek
Nomination Committee meetings and general meeting(s) during BEA S &3 2 HELERIWOT ¢
the financial year of 2020 are as follows:
Meetings Attended/Held
HERE/EERE
Overall
Remuneration Audit Nomination General Attendance
Board Committee Committee Committee meeting Rate
Name ®E Ezg HMWzZEEE® EREEE REZEE REAE  REHEER
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTEE
Directors
Mr. TANG Kwai Chang HEZ kL 6/6 3/3 3/39 N/AT & A 1/1 100%
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong* & #4 &= 5t £ 4/4 N/AT i A 212 1/16@ 1/1 100%
(passed away on 5 October (#2020 10A5H
2020) i tt)
Mr. WONG Man Fai INBELE 6/6 3/3@ 3/3 2/2 1/1 100%
Mr. Lok Kung Chin, Hardy** BEASIE e 4 2/2 N/AT 8 A il 1/1 N/ATE A 100%
(appointed on 10 December (R2020%12A10H
2020) BZ1E)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong HERLE 6/69 3/3 3/30 2/20 1/1 100%
Mr. WU Kam On Keith P ks 6/6°) 3/30) 3/3%) 2/20) 1/1 100%
Ms. FAN Yee Man Bt g NME 6/6 N/AT 38 A 3/30 N/AT & A 1/1 100%
Average Attendance of the EZEE€HETH 100%
Board Members HE®
* Refers to the number of meetings prior to 5 October 2020. * 52020 10A5H Z AT &2 8K E -

**  Refers to the number of meetings after appointment of Mr. Lok **  #§ R 45 IF 58 £ 72020F12 H10B B L £ 2 &
Kung Chin, Hardy on 10 December 2020. Eof=—=:3 @I
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2020 (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Chairman of the Board

(b)  Secretary of the Board/Committee

(¢ Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
(d)  Chairman of the Audit Committee

(e) Chairman of the Nomination Committee

(f) Attendance by Invitation

During the year under review, the chairman of the Board also
met with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other executive Directors and senior management
of the Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by Shareholders in a general meeting.
Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by Shareholders
are published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General
Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s
Bye-laws, all the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term of not more than
three years under their letters of appointment. Pursuant to the
Company’s current Bye-laws, all
retirement by rotation and one-third (or the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Directors are subject to
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERKRSE (F)

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements and the Board
procedures, including the terms of reference of the Board
Committees. Such Directors will be provided with “A Guide on
Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry,
“Guidelines for Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Directors as guidelines on the general principles of duties of
directors, Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors (if applicable)
and Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission.

The Company Secretary regularly provides to Directors
information about the enrollment of external training courses
and seminars as well as legal alerts and articles which are
relevant for Directors to keep up-to-date on any legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance requirements and with
professional practices
program would help refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in
relation to their performance of the roles, functions and duties
of directors of a listed company.

in a dynamic business world. The

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to senior management of the
Company in this highly competitive consumer product market.
Senior Management is encouraged to participate in various
CPD programs at the expense of the Company.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors
participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by attending training(s) and/or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the

Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Reading regulatory

EESREREEEXRE (&)

HE2020F12A31HILFERN IEEEESE

BB, AEEERARARERRES
BEMEENMH2HEEENHEEERRE
EE e

Attending professional
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant
to directors’ duties,
regulatory updates

Reading materials and business

updates and relating to business HEERESHE
directors’ duties and industry EEREENR
MEEERTCESN MEEREER ES €3RI -0
EHREERE TENEHR e &8
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong EEERE v v v
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith BRE kA& V V v
Ms. Fan Yee Man B gNE v v V
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITEE
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang BET it v V v
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong' AR % & v v v
Mr. Wong Man Fai IXBEE v v y
Mr. Lok Kung Chin, Hardy' BEASIE L A4 v v v

1 Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong passed away on 5 October 2020.
Mr. Lok Kung Chin, Hardy was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2020.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are prepared on a
going-concern basis. All the new accounting standards and
policies adopted by the Company have been thoroughly
discussed and approved at the Audit Committee before
adoption by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

The Group has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the
“Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required standards
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Code is also applicable
to the specified group of employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information. Specific enquiries were
made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020. Directors
have also disclosed to the Company their interests as director
and other office in other public companies and organisation in
a timely manner, and have regularly reported to the Company
Secretary on any subsequent changes.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to review the Board
effectiveness and to identify areas for improvements. The
chairman of the Board has also been evaluated on whether he
has adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled
his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board. Such
evaluation is usually conducted once a year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board
and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, shareholders and senior
management of the Company.

EEEEE)

AEECERM—ERFRXSTHFHD &
AR ERRBMSE Sz L ARE

FETESFR 5 2T R ([HRESF A e
SIZ MEARER R o 5T RIJNE AR AT RE A =X

E%ﬁ@%ﬁZﬁﬁﬁﬂZﬁiﬁﬂﬁl PN
RAEME2BEEELARER MEBES

RN EHE2020F12A31B tFEHE BT

SPRIE Y 2 RERLE -

RAREEESBEERNE E2020F12 A31
AIEFEENERARRENEET  BEARA
EBCERE - ESTNERRAARAABEERS
EREF ZMZHMERAMAR AR KA
B HEMEBGE YERTANEBEHTHRR

A EE R -

EEGLAREERTEFEZUE - LW
AFUELIT  ARANREFELEA
ERRIERTRSRERERTEAER
BATEBERTIR - BB RS TR
—R -

DNERE
“ﬁwiﬁ$“ﬂ2ﬁ§ FTHEFEERE-
REMEREMDESERESFZESZHE

FRRF/ R URBEEEFEKE BRER
ARFISEERBABMZRIFER
—FCFTFFE REREABREZERERAR 45




Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEER®RE (HF)

COMPANY SECRETARY (Continued)

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to
the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction
programme of Directors. All members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies

and procedures and organizational structures which aims to:

— ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;

— achieve effective and efficient corporate processes;

— safeguard the value of corporate assets;

— ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

— ensure the operations comply with all existing rules, policies
and regulations.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal audit department plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

Internal audit department acts as an independent role to
perform reviews over the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control and risk management systems. The
department also assesses the in particular
business or functional areas, including fraud or corruption, and
conducts reviews or audits to provide reasonable assurance
that adequate governance and controls are in place to address
such risks.

risks inherent

Internal audit department reports to the Audit Committee and
administratively to chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer. It was granted with the authority of unrestricted access
to all aspects of the Company’s activities and internal controls.
This helps the internal audit department to provide an
independent and objective assurance to the Audit Committee
on whether the control environments within the Company are
adequate.
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TEER®RE (HF)

INTERNAL AUDIT (Continued)

Internal audit department carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls in accordance with its annual
audit plan reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The
audit plan is prepared using a risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the Company structure,
organisational change, overall materiality of each business unit,
management’s concern, nature and complexity of operation
and operating environment. The risk assessment methodology
assists in identifying business risks and determining audit
frequencies. Internal audit department schedules its resources
focusing on high risk areas.

annual

The scope of work performed by internal audit department
includes review of entity wide controls, business process
control review, project based operational audit
compliance review and information technology system review. In
particular, business process
reporting controls and control testing would be performed on
assessing the operating effectiveness. Business process review
is performed on a continuous basis and aim to cover all major
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries on a cyclical
basis. Project based operation audit review focuses on specific
areas with high perceived risks and management concerns.
Internal audit department also conducts special
investigations, consulting and advisory services related to
corporate governance and controls as required by
management or the Audit Committee.

review,

review focuses on financial

review,

Results of audit reviews are compiled in internal audit reports
and sent to senior management of the Company for process
improvement and rectification on a timely basis. Remediation
actions have been developed collaboratively by the
management and operational teams to rectify the control
weaknesses identified. All critical audit findings and control
weaknesses are summarised and presented to the Audit
Committee for their knowledge and/or attention.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
The risk governance structure and the roles and responsibilities
of each layer are listed below:

Board/Audit Committee

Risk management &
operation control
team (“RMOC”)

Internal audit

Department heads

Spokespersons

Individual employees

Take the overall responsibility for risk management
Establish the structure for risk management

Approve operational risk policy and risk management
procedures

Understand and review group most significant risks
Determine strategic approach to risk and set risk appetite

Consider major incident findings and management
response

Develop and update the risk management policy
and risk register

Co-ordinate the risk management and internal
control activities

Co-ordinate committees, contingency and
recovery plan

Review major investigation findings on incidents
Compile risk information and prepare reports for
the Board/Audit Committee

Develop a risk-based internal audit programme
Audit the risk processes across the organisation
Receive and provide assurance on risk
management

Report on the efficiency and effectiveness of
internal control

Build risk aware culture within the depts

Agree risk management performance targets
Ensure implementation of risk improvement
recommendations

Identify and report changed circumstances/risks
Individual employees

Consider materiality of information disclosed to
external parties

Delivery disclosed information to relevant
stakeholders

Understand, accept and implement risk
management process

Report inefficient, unnecessary or unworkable
controls

Report loss events and near miss incidents
Co-operate with management on incident
investigations
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TRERKRSE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily

operations,

financial activities,

compliance, strategy

development and business planning, investment decision and
external factors. The process are as follows:

Process Risk
Identification

Risk Analysis

Risk Evaluation

Risk Treatment

Identify the risks through department heads and
RMOC

Identify the risks that have a potential to
negatively affect the business strategic plan of
the Group

Consider the materiality of the impact of the risk
Access the relevancy to the business strategic
plan and the level of potential impact of the
delivery of the business strategic plan

Conduct a quantity measurement on its inherent
risk level, residual risk level and target risk level
Assess the risk severity according to its level of
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event
becoming actual event

Determine the severity with reference to the
historical data, reference from the industry and
own judgment

Identify the risks and assess the options available
to accept, mitigate or avoid the risks

Decide the appropriate response in terms of its
effectiveness

Establish the priorities in responding the risks

Selecting the risk treatment options

Preparing and implementing risk treatment plans
RMOC shall make a report to the senior
management for reporting the latest risk
landscape on a regular basis
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEER®RE (HF)

RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

° Risk Register
RMOC provides a risk register template for systematic
and consistent presentation of identified risks. For each
risk, there is a separate page which displays the details of
the risk, the risk severity presented in the format of risk
assessment matrix, the internal controls/mitigation
measures and the actions for improving the risk
mitigation.

° Control Self-Assessment (“CSA”)
The Group adopts the CSA process to provide
reasonable assurance that risks are properly managed
and business objectives can be met. It also promotes risk
awareness and the importance of up-keeping effective
internal controls.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS EFFECTIVENESS
Internal audit department has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies for
the financial year of 2020. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the findings and impartial opinion of the audit
department on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

internal

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2020. No
significant areas of concern that might affect the financial,
operational and compliance issues and risk management
functions of the Company were identified. The scope of this
review also covered the adequacy of resources, qualification
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, financial
reporting and internal audit functions and their training and
budget.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEER®RE (HF)

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company
is aware of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules
and SFO and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention unless it falls within
any of the Safe Harbours provisions under the SFO. The
Company has had a system in place with established policies
and procedures for complying with the Inside Information
disclosure requirements under the regulatory regime. Every
Directors have been provided with the
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company has included in its code of
conduct and staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information.

“Guidelines on

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company by Shareholders at the last annual general
meeting. An amount of HK$1.9 million was charged for the year
ended 31 December 2020 for statutory audits for the Company
and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services
provided by Ernst & Young for the Company and subsidiaries
during the year was HK$0.7 million, mainly comprised of (i)
interim review of the financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2020; (i) provision of advisory
services for the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020; and
(iii) tax compliance and advisory services.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
2020 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 69 to 76.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERKRSE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may, by written requisition to the board or the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in the
requisition. The requisition must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda (the “Registered Office”) for
the attention of the Company Secretary of the Company. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the
earliest opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should
also be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai Tak
Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Head Office”) for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The
requisition must be deposited at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Company Secretary. To ensure that the
requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should also be
deposited at the Head Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEER®RE (HF)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director at a general meeting is available for
viewing at the Company’s website at www.twcoffee.com.

Shareholders can also refer to the detailed requirements and
procedures as set forth
Companies Act and the Company’s Bye-laws when making any
requisitions or proposals for transaction at the general meetings
of the Company.

in the relevant sections of the

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

there was no

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the Company’s information. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy is posted on the
Company’s website.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.twcoffee.com)
to keep Shareholders and the investing public posted of the
Company’s latest business developments, final and interim
results announcements, reports, public
announcements, corporate governance policies and practices
and other relevant shareholder information.

financial
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

tRERB®HRE (H)

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (Continued)

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue,
including the appointment and re-election of Directors will be
proposed by the Chairman at the annual general meeting of the
Shareholders and will be voted on by poll. The detailed
procedures of conducting a poll will be explained by the
Chairman at the commencement of the annual general meeting
to ensure that Shareholders are familiar with such procedures.
The poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on the same day following the
annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company. The Company has established a principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai
Tak Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong and has been registered as a non-
Hong Kong company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently, the
Company, through its subsidiaries, primarily engages in (i)
processing and sale of coffee, tea and related complementary
products; (ii) sale of frozen processed food; (iii) sale and rental
of coffee and tea machines; and (iv) food and beverage store
operations.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Group during the
financial year is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and important events affecting the Group
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 9 to 21 of this Annual Report. Further, a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group can be found in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 7 to 8 of this Annual Report. These
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE(H)

SHARE CAPITAL
The movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s distributable
premium, contributed surplus and retained profits. As at 31
December 2020, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$407.0 million. in the Company’s reserves
during the year in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

reserves comprise the share

Movements
is set out

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK4.00 cents per ordinary share (2019: HKB.33 cents) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020.

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 29 April 2021. Upon
approval to be obtained at the AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or before Tuesday,
25 May 2021 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 6 May
2021.

Shareholders’

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 26 April 2021 to Thursday, 29 April 2021, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 23 April 2021.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend, if
approved, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Thursday, 6 May 2021, no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered on that day. In order to be eligible
to receive the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares of
the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 5 May 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
repurchased a total of 46,600,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange at a total consideration (before expense) of HK$52.9
million. All the repurchased Shares were cancelled as at the
date of this Annual Report and the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the normal value thereof.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the period from 1 January
2020 and up to the date of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE(H)

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report are set out on page 29.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is satisfied that all independent non-executive

Directors are independent as defined under the Listing Rules.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Wong Tat Tong and Mr. Wong Man Fai will retire from their
offices as Director at the AGM to be held on Thursday, 29
April 2021. Further, in accordance with bye-law 102 of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lok Kung Chin, Hardy shall be
subject to re-election at the AGM. The Board has also
proposed the appointment of Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard as
an executive Director. Subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM, the appointment of Mr. Kam will
become effective on 4 May 2021.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
The biographical
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 26
of this Annual Report.

information of the Directors and senior
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Tat Tong and Mr. Wu Kam On Keith ceased to be
directors of TWG Heritage Tea Company Limited, which was
dissolved on 16 October 2020.

Mr. Wong Tat Tong and Mr. Wu Kam On Keith ceased to be
directors of Tsit Wing (Hong Kong) Frozen Food Company
Limited, which was dissolved on 16 October 2020.

Mr. Wong Tat Tong, Mr. Wu Kam On Keith and Ms. Fan Yee
Man were appointed as directors of Tsit Wing Cold Chain
Solutions Company Limited, which was incorporated on 7 July
2020.

For changes in remuneration of each of the executive Directors,
please refer to Note 8(b) to the financial statements.

Saved as disclosed above and in the biography of each of the
Directors, there is no information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors proposed for re-election or appointment
at the AGM has entered into a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, while also
makes reference to the complexity of the Director’'s work,
workload, responsibilities, as the Company’s
remuneration policies. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest-paid individuals of the Group are set out in
Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

as well
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the directors and chief executives
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Company

(a)

Number of underlying
Shares comprised in
options granted under

%EFE%H&@&EB@H&@EE&

MR2020F12A31H » ARAIZREEREETH
AEBRBEEHE ARARRE K& HE [ AE B
FE(EERBHFREEKRAIEXVED) Kk H -
HERGO REEEPHEERBEESRPE K
BIEXVEBET7 R85 BB A& AR 7] KBt XX FT Y
Eamfxe (RERIEES LS EOIE K
NEERTETHRABEEIBAEENE
wmAKE) HRIBEH R E GO EXVEE
352K EEE BN ARRIRIBZIEFMARTE
FMAnERNXE - IRBIZEESTRIZAN
EARANBRBAIMOERFAABLNT

(@) REABWER
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of the Pre-IPO Share as at
Shares held Option Scheme 31 December 2020
Name of Executive Director ~ Nature of Interest (Note 1) (Note 2) Total (Note 3)
HBBEERARREN
BRETHRLNBR
FEROUE BRERNEBRGEE 20205128318 B
HITESHS EEME (B zE1) (W552) Ay BRESEI ()
Mr. Wong Tat Tong Interest in controlled 514,667,312 N/A 514,667,312 71.44%
(“Mr. Wong”) (Note 4) corporation; beneficial TR
owner
BEERE(EEE)(MTY) XEEE#ER:
ERBBA
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith Beneficial owner 1,376,000 - 1,376,000 0.19%
SHREE ERBEA
Ms. Fan Yee Man Beneficial owner 918,000 - 918,000 0.13%

gaeg/E EEHEEA
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Notes:

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company were long positions. None of the
Directors held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December
2020.

AR ARG KA G ERY AL
2 > 2020F12A31H  E M ERN A
nam REEROEBEEAE -

t
A

All these interests held by such Directors were underlying 2. REEEMEI2IEZAN2017F12A
shares in respect of share options granted to them on 15 15ERIEE XA F SR ERET SR
December 2017 pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option THRENEREMSHBERD  EZF
Scheme, further details of which are set out in Note 29 to 15 & A B 75 3 & Y 7529 o
the financial statements.
Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 3. BARFIR2020F12A31A M E BT
720,444,312 shares as at 31 December 2020. A720,444,3120 B h 5T & o
Mr. Wong directly holds the entire issued share capital of 4.  EHRHEHEEF BHero Valour Limited®
Hero Valour Limited which holds 71.44% of the total B B 1T A - MiHero Valour Limited
issued share capital of the Company. BEARRRCBITRABEENT.44% ©
(b) Interests in Associated Corporation (b) RAEBLIEBEBNER
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Nature of associated Number of as at
Name of Director corporation Share held 31 December 2020
72020128318 K
EEHA HELIEER RO ER ERSAE S
Mr. Wong Hero Valour Limited 1 100.00%
mAAE Hero Valour Limited
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of Br EXIFFEEIN - B2020F12H318 + AR A

EFATBARABBERAD ARE M
FR (T 3% R 38 5 % 9 05 45 ) XV ER)
e 1) T AR BB AR 19 5 5 4 3B 5 TR B 5 R 91 68
35205 AR A AT R B RMABE0ES X
WR - IR RS T AR T MG AR 7 R
SRR AR -

the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG 61



Directors’ Report (continued)

EZg®E (H)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
each of the persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

%Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂiﬁqﬂﬂ’ﬂifg
mw

F2020F12 A31H + SN A R Bl R IR 7% 5 & HA
E5PIE336IEFENELMAT R - J//(T}\i
(RARESTHEEZTHRABRINRAEARD
BROEBEARNDFHEERERER maééﬂ
MEARE% KA E R ROA R

Number of ordinary shares
(long position)
ZTEREE (FR)
Approximate %
Directly of total issued

beneficially share

Name of Shareholder owned (Note 3)

HEBRTRG

BEPHBEDIL

BRER %A ERERES (M$7E3)

Hero Valour Limited (Note 1) (Fff&F1) 514,667,312 71.44%
Ms. Li Ying Wah Irene (“Ms. Li") (Note 2)

FRELT ([FLt])(FF2) 514,667,312 71.44%

Notes:
1. Hero Valour Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong.

2. Ms. Li is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Under the SFO, Ms. Li is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Mr. Wong is interested in.

3. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 720,444,312
shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no
person, other than the executive Directors, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are disclosed
in Note 29 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director or his/her respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a Director
or any person engaged in the full-time employment of the
Company, concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2020.

REMUNERATION FOR SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the senior management by bands for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

iR RES &l

A 75 B B AR 4 5+ I #0 3 196 20 B 5 98 % B 20
Pt 5 -

EHRABERE

18 45 7 20 70 B ER 40 2 B K B TR B 9 3
R AAARAERE B —EERS LT

FRENDREREKT -

EERXG  RHIAGHPHER

BEARAREEAMB AR RITHLMmMA
NRAEFHHEABEZHEACERR LHAR
ADREFHEAERAED AR FRIFAEM
HEFENEARS THIELH -

EERBFRBPHES

FRCBRBIADE R/ SHMEADE
S EFABSEANTEHBACEER L
7 47 ) B8 A0 0 B o B T T AE BT A
FEBF(EREERME) MEETEAE
25 -

BEEEN
RELE2020F12A31H IEFE - BEEEI L sk 1F
EEBARAZHRERNERLDEBENE
BRTBHNEHN(HEEFHI AR EWNLEE
BRI LB RIE A LIBRIN) o

=& EEE 5

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE R EEENH
EMEEE T -

Number of individuals

AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = £1,000,0007% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ T £1,500,000/% 7T 2
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 227 and 240
(2019: 219 and 299) employees in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, respectively.

Remuneration packages are generally structured in reference to
qualifications, experience, performance and market term. The
Company has also adopted share option schemes, details of
which are set forth under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” in the Prospectus and Note 29 to the financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group provided
various trainings to its employees ranging from operation skill
such as occupational safety training and machine control
training to professional knowledge including management
system and business knowledge, to ensure the effective
implementation of the Group’s business strategy.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors), have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing
connected transaction entered by the Group is exempted under
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Rule such

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements.

In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in Note
33 to the financial statements, the Company confirms that it
has reviewed the transactions which complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules (if applicable).
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, other than the non-compliance
matter disclosed on Note 31 to the financial statements, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and during the year, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

ESG POLICIES AND PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to building a sustainable future. It
assesses the materiality of various ESG issues and take
measures to control the environmental and social impacts
during operations. All businesses are required to comply with all
applicable ESG laws and regulations strictly. The Group strives
to minimize its environmental impacts through effective air
emissions control, superior water and energy efficiency, proper
waste management and resources conservation. The Group
also puts effort into creating positive social impacts by
protecting labour right and maintaining integrity. Discussion on
the Group’s ESG initiatives, performance and applicable ESG
laws and regulations can be found
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

in the standalone

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important and valuable
assets and thus it provides competitive and attractive
remuneration packages to retain the employees.

The management reviews annually the remuneration to its
employees of the Group. The Group values long standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group aims
at delivering high quality services to
developing mutual trust and enhancing communication and
commitment between the Group and its suppliers.

its customers and
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the percentages of
purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 19.2% and 42.0%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 25.6% and
38.1%, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or any of their close associates, or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty except they shall
incur or sustain through their own wilful neglect or default,
fraud and dishonesty respectively. In addition, during the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Company arranged appropriate
liability insurance coverage in respect of any legal action
against the Directors. The insurance coverage shall be
reviewed on an annual basis.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes of the Company as
disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
or the relevant laws of the Bermuda where the Company is
incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its ultimate goal. It is the policy of the
Company to allow the Shareholders to participate in its profits
and to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Board
continues to adopt a dividend policy on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee. In deciding whether to recommend the
payment of dividend to the Shareholders, the Board will take
into account various factors, including (i) general business
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; (i) financial condition and results of
operations of the Group; and (iii) expected capital requirements
and future expansion plans of the Group. The payment of
dividend is subject to applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s constitutional documents. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. It is the
intention of the Company to distribute dividends in amounts of
not less than 35% of its net profit for a financial year by way of
cash or by other means.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
Saved as those disclosed under
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under review.

the section headed

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and to adopt effective measures to achieve efficient
use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

DONATIONS

During the vyear, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately HK$567,000 (2019:
HK$179,000).

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 205 and 208 of this Annual
Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no subsequent event between the end of the
reporting period (i.e. 31 December 2020) and the date of this
Annual Report that would cause material impact on the Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM. Ernst & Young, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 4 March 2021
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Independent Auditor's Report
B % B

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Tsit Wing International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsit
Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 204, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgement,
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
in that

in our professional
were of most significance in our audit of the

how our audit addressed the matter is provided
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide

BREFTEE
PAREFTFHIRERMANEXZHE  RRY
AHGAEMBRENBARR/EENFTHR &
LEERERMETBERRAMBERR LD
ARRFETREN - HMTSHELFERAE
HEBNERL HTASER BMARETE
BRI RIS —FHEM A

BME BT A ME [T E XA MR
RAFENEEIHOMENEE  BREZES
R EME - Bt RPNFEARBEATRER
NEH L PR P BERRENERR AR
BEFEE c PN ETIEF (BREBRENTE
TR REIZ ) &R - TR P EIBE MY A 4R
BHMBREAMERNEATREMER -

the basis for
consolidated financial statements.

our

audit opinion on the accompanying

Key audit matter

BARETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNETNMNEEERENER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

E 5 /&YW 5 E B E A

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade
receivables of HK$111,114,000, representing
approximately 16% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
was required in assessing the expected loss
allowance (“ECL”) for the trade receivables, with
reference to the grouping of various customer
segments, ageing profile of the trade receivable
balances, existence of disputes, creditworthiness and
past collection history of customers and forecast
economic conditions.

R2020F12831H » & & l s S EWRIE A
111,114,000 ¢ - 1§ E&EE 1B ER16% o I E
%%W%E%ﬁ%%%%%qﬁ EERIE])BEAEE
ﬁik%%ﬂﬁ% %%%%gﬁ“%‘@ E 5k
WHRIBEGNER BPFETAEUL R MBER

o

*Kﬁﬁ&&i%/?i%ﬂkﬁﬁ il

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
HERRHNGEE T BHREWT24 - 3%18°

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment,
our procedures included: (i) obtaining confirmations
and evidence of subsequent settlements for trade
receivable balances; and (i) evaluating management’s
assumptions used to determine the ECL allowance
through testing of the underlying information on the
ageing reports generated by the Group’s financial
reporting system and assessing the repayment
history, creditworthiness and reputation of the debtors
as well as forward-looking information with reference
to publicly available information.

ATl B 28 B R B AT B ﬁf&ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ%‘ﬁ C()IISE S
H’%Hﬁzﬁ%%}x AR H R A E R MER - KT E IR
BRANRETRHEEERE %‘éﬁﬂ’ﬂ?j‘“ A RA
A ERBEMBREEZARMEXNERRBEEAES
%‘”?13%%‘%/\1*1#7?@ EARBEURKZ2EZERR
AIEERMATEME S (HER)

%nu T &

0
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEM®KS (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

AEHFESNERE)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNMNEEEARETEE

BRETEE

Net realisable value of inventories
FEEEFEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded

inventories of HK$117,959,000, representing
approximately 17% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
were required in assessing the net realisable value of
the inventories, with reference to estimated selling
prices and saleability of the inventories and expected
future market and economic conditions that might
have an impact on the sales projections.
202012 A31H » & & B #1517 §117,959,000/8
T BEEBAEENTR RIhFER #RIEE
FRAELEREBABNMGS K2ERAFAEERE
SEREM  URAIFEHE RN AL RKTHL
BARMR

S

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
EEEZEHNEE T BWMEMFT2.4 - 3R17 -

In evaluating management’s assessment, our
procedures included: (i) observing physical inventory
counts at major locations to ascertain the condition of
inventories; (i) obtaining an understanding of the net
realisable value assessments made by management;
(iii) reviewing the inventory ageing analysis to identify
slow moving or obsolete inventories; and (iv)
comparing the actual selling prices of finished goods
subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to their
carrying amounts.

AEERENEE  PRONEFE (N EEMEE
REMGFERY  UHEIATERR () TREEEH
AR BREMETME  (NEHEFEERD N - LAF
BHXREFE  RiVRFEZZHELERKEHE
BREBEREE  ARBENmESRNA R A2
BEFHEIREEIR-
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% BE R E (&)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

inconsistent with the consolidated financial
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEM®KS (F)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

EENGEMBRRARKENER

ERREZARERBEBEBEAMASRM
MCE BT BREER) R EB(R A HRADH
BEATHEEEMTSNEEMBEHRE XL
HERARREEAMBBRRNOBRE N FESR
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% BE R E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

influence the economic

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

74 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

REBEREBETEE
B5F (&

MBMRARED

EERERZSKFNRE  BTERE Hzﬁn
(BEAEFEIDETHRS: AR —EKES
PR L 7 7 P54 B B 3R o 8RR R AL 7T A e/ BRRF =K
$A RSl HE ZZD%E\EE?E,HHt:ﬁEé@IJZEWJ_PK
AREFEGAYBRRERERBERAMH
WRATE L M EEORTE - RIABE A #E R ER AL 7]
WREEK -

ERBE(EBBRFEADETRINBED &K
PMERTEXRAE RiFTEREREE - &
(sPIE

o  HRIFFFEBERERFFRERMEBITE
MR TEEAHERBMHRR - &
HARMITENRFUARYEERER A
FERZEMEENESLRS AR
MERMER - AREREFAI a0 R85
HiE BRER  ERMRM  30EBRA
HaEsl s £ At Ree B ARGFEmE
BHERERBRMDOER SR KR
HEERMERMERERFAA AR -

o THEBEFHBHANES  URE
ENEAERF BEEMYFEE SEEA
MEHOBEREHRER -

e HNEEF=MERASIBERNGEERE
hEst b MERE R EN AR -



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEM®KS (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEMEKS (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit in this
independent auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai Cary.

resulting

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

4 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

> A 12 ‘13}:2
:%71]1 (=) jﬁ =
Year ended 31 December 2020
B E2020F12 A31H IEFE

2019
20194
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FHE T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREENR
REVENUE A 5 638,507 784,998
Cost of sales Fi=R=ID' 9N (375,453) (475,166)
Gross profit E7 263,054 309,832
Other income and gains, net R Nk 5 15,491 5,127
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHAX (107,223) (115,863)
Administrative expenses THRAX (74,261) (79,204)
Other expenses, net HA X F5 (3,841) (5,104)
Finance costs Bl & A AN 6 (1,441) (3,509)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM BEREXEBKBREA
CONTINUING OPERATIONS i A 7 91,779 111,279
Income tax expense Fr 8’ 10 (14,982) (21,466)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BEREEBBER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS & F 76,797 89,813
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREEL
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM —EERULEREEEKRE
A DISCONTINUED OPERATION FREE 11 = (12,523)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR £ R F 76,797 77,290
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (continued)

GEBRER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F12 A31HIEFE
2019
2019%F
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FAT
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners NEEB AEMLEF
of the parent: (F8) -
— from continuing operations — REFELCEER 76,797 89,813
— from a discontinued operation — RE—HEKRIEKS
Eg S - (14,335)
Profit for the year attributable to NAEBABEFA
owners of the parent s ) 76,797 75,478
Profit attributable to non-controlling — FF 28 & 4 %5 J& 15 % 7
interests:
— from a discontinued operation — KB —HEKILKS
S — 1,812
76,797 77,290
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
EARNINGS PER SHARE BLARERESEREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhHERAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT 13
Basic AR
— For profit for the year — F A& A 10.32 9.89
— For profit for the year from — BEKEEBHME
continuing operations F R 10.32 11.77
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — F A& A 10.31 9.88
— For profit for the year from — BELEEBSE
continuing operations F N A 10.31 11.75
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEETEWER

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F12 A31H IEFE
2019
2019%F
HK$'000
FAET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR £ Py 76,797 77,290
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Htez2Ebz(HE)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that BERHIMATREEFN DB E B
may be reclassified to profit or loss in ~ HE 2 E U5 (EE) :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: MEHER:
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #EFINEFKHEH =&
foreign operations 13,156 (3,505)
Reclassification adjustments for REUBFMME AR MEZ
deregistration of subsidiaries BN BERAE - 1,013
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ EFRHMEEKE(BEE)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13,156 (2,492)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR # R 2 W= A 5
THE YEAR 89,953 74,798
Attributable to: AN AT B :
Owners of the parent UNEIEZ 2N 89,953 72,986
Non-controlling interests IR ER - 1,812
89,953 74,798
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

31 December 2020

202012 A31H
2019
20194
Notes HK$’000
B 3T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E e 14 143,913 147,405
Intangible assets BVEAE 16 330 419
Deposits paid for purchases of items BB EWE - ME K& X E
of property, plant and equipment HEES 14,143 10,324
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - Fe REMER
receivables FRIE 19 852 5,024
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 26 2,782 2,460
Total non-current assets EmMBEELE 162,020 165,632
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories rE 17 117,959 125,748
Trade receivables B 5 e W IR 18 111,114 118,855
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIE - e REAMmEY
receivables A 19 14,808 12,852
Tax recoverable A Y B 54 18 2,032 205
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEED 20 276,807 315,211
Total current assets mEEELE 522,720 572,871
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Trade payables B 5 N FIR 21 51,595 73,567
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 N B FE 1~ 3R IR 22 44,553 50,854
Derivative financial instruments MTEesMIA 23 491 568
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER 24 12,094 26,154
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 8,427 14,966
Tax payable FE B IR 4,325 3,655
Total current liabilities MBAGEERE 121,485 169,764
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 401,235 403,107
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERAHBARE
LIABILITIES 563,255 568,739
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e BN R (&)

31 December 2020

2020412 A31H
2019
20194
Notes HK$’000
B 3T FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Lease liabilities HERE 25 4,935 12,709
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBBAEE 26 5,817 6,295
Total non-current liabilities B NNk 10,752 19,004
Net assets BEFE 552,503 549,735
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BRABHEBEAELEESR
of the parent
Share capital & A 27 72,044 76,394
Reserves 1 28 480,459 473,341
Total equity M ARRE 552,503 549,735

Wong Tat Tong Wu Kam On Keith
BEEE SR ER &
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERBEEDR

Year ended 31 December 2020

H E=2020F12 A31H IEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
RAEEAEE
Share Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share  premium  Contributed reserve option  fluctuation Other  Retained controlling
capital account surplus funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests  Total equity
& tp AT BRE ERRD FER
e BER  AARR NES b [ HbEE RK2EH Ehy En ExfE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR TR TERL TR TR TERL TR TR TER TR TR
(note 28(a) (note 28(b)) (note 28(c)) (note 28(d)) (note 28(e))
(Misko8@) (Fizkosio) (Mstos(c)) (Miztos(d)) (MisEos(e))
At 1 January 2019 201951718 76,207 254,311 123,678 6,818 4,235 (7,489) 218 78,630 536,508 17,819 554,327
Profit for the year ERE - - - - - - - 75,478 75,478 1,812 77,290
Other comprehensive ~ EREM2EFE -
loss for the year:
Exchange differences BN EHH
on translation of ERZZ
foreign operations - - - - - (3,505) - - (3,505) - (3,505)
Reclassffication RIHERNE
adjustments for ARFEZ
deregistration of ENAREHE
subsidiaries - - - - - 1,013 - - 1,013 - 1,013
Total comprehensive FR2E(EE)/
(loss)/income for the gt t
year - - - - - (2,492) - 75,478 72,986 1,812 74,798
Dividends i) 12 - - - - - - - 83311 (83311) - 6331)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE&E—HHBAA 11 - - - - - - - - - (19,631)  (19,631)
Equity-settled share AR H BB
option arrangements ZH 29 - - - - 2,443 - - - 2,443 - 2,443
Issue of shares upon 1T EBERIEE%IT
exercise of share &{n
options 27(a) 187 3,440 - - 2,518) - - - 1,109 - 1,109
Transfer of share option % U B8 FR 5 48 ¢
reserve upon BRERE
forfeiture of share
options - - - - (80) - - 80 - - -
Transfer from retained ~ EBARAEF
profits - - - 2,936 - - - (2,936) - - -
At 31 December 2019 #2019512A31H 76,394 257,751* 123,578" 9,754* 4,080* (9,981) 218 87,941 549,735 - 549,735
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

GEREE2DR(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020
B E2020F12 A31H IEFE

Notes
it

At 1 January 2020 #20201 518 76,394 257,751 123,578 9,754 4,080 (9,981) 218 87,941 549,735
Profit for the year FREF = = = = = = = 76,797 76,797
Other comprehensive income R E 12 B ¢

for the year:

Exchange differences on BEBINEBR

translation of foreign ERZR
operations = = = = = 13,156 = = 13,156

Total comprehensive income N2 Ml & A%

for the year = = = = = 13,156 = 76,797 89,953
Dividends K& 12 = - - - - - - (36,453)  (36,453)
Issue of shares upon exercise 171 B IR HE S B 1T

of share options & 1n 27(a) 310 5,642 - - (4,107) - - - 1,845
Shares repurchased and AR {7 B [0 36 7% 85

cancelled 27(b) (4,660) (48,510) = = = = = = (53,170)
Equity-settled share option LAREEEERE

arrangements ZH 29 - - - - 593 - - - 593
Transfer of share option R B e e

reserve upon forfeiture of BRERE

share options = = = - (107) - - 107 -
Transfer from retained profits @4 5 R H % F = - - 1,954 - - - (1,954) -
Transfer to retained profits BB E A A

upon deregistration of BERZREB

a subsidiary bl = = - - - - (218) 218 -
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12431H 72,044 214,883* 123,578* 11,708* 459* 3,175* = 126,656* 552,503
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERERLREAVYBMRAENEGEEREE

480,459,000/ 7t (2019412 4318 : 473,341,000
BIT) °

HK$480,459,000 (31 December 2019: HK$473,341,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERNER

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F12 A31HIEFE
2019
20194
Notes HK$’000
B 3% BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R EZBHHRELHKE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax B 75 A& A (& 18)
Form continuing operations REFELCEER 91,779 111,279
From a discontinued operation REERIEER 11 - (11,820)
Adjustments for: KIATIEE %
Interest income B U A 5 (3,685) (5,096)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 1,441 4,652
Depreciation of right-of-use assets B EITE 14 15,031 11,659
Depreciation of other items of Y- BEREHEEM
property, plant and equipment HEFRE 14 23,784 21,900
Amortisation of intangible assets myEE Eﬁ Fic! 110 1,944
Impairment of trade receivables ‘é’ 2 FE W R IE R (B 835 851
Equity-settled share option LA % #E 4 ﬁi oficig3
expense 2 7 593 2,443
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 & W A 5 7 1,286 230
Loss on disposal of items of Hj EWE - BE L& #E
property, plant and equipment JH B EiE 7 81 91
Loss on deregistration of BB B AR 2
subsidiaries [ 7 = 1,013
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWEB A EE 11 - 17,053
Fair value loss on derivative MEEMIEATE
financial instruments 518 7 718 573
Write-down of inventories to net FEHRRER#IEFE
realisable value 7 756 953
Write-off of inventories 7 & M58 7 779 1,032
COVID-19-related rent 7 AR ACOVID-19
concessions from lessors HEEESHR 5, 25 (619) —
132,889 158,657
Decrease in inventories FTERL 10,019 47,737
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e W IE R 8,417 17,856
Decrease in prepayments, deposits  TE{T K3 « 124 & H i fE UL
and other receivables IR 2,811 4,056
Decrease in trade payables 2 5N IR (23,652) (9,681)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and & 51 2038 K H fth /& 1~ ZUB
other payables CRL4),/ 48 hn (7,217) 2,702
Cash generated from operations KEMFIREE 123,267 221,327
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREENGEN (11,659) (10,342)
Overseas taxes refunded BiRE 57 MR I8 - 340
Overseas taxes paid BB (5,502) (9,991)
Net cash flows from operating CEEHFBRERE
activities %% 106,106 201,334
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

GERERER(A)

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F12 A31H IEFE
2019
20194
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RBREZBHRELSAKRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWE HEMKEEB
plant and equipment (19,545) (28,893)
Purchases of items of right-of-use B EFRAEEEEE
assets (6,307) -
Deposits paid for purchases of items XHEEWME  ME K&EHE
of property, plant and equipment 15 E Hz% (8,422) (8,580)
Purchases of derivative financial BETES/RTA
instruments (823) -
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash H&E— K B R T - 1k
and cash equivalents disposed FILEMNReRREE
1=k 11 - 18,765
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE K=MK EER
property, plant and equipment Fr 5 3k 18 501 234
Interest income received 2R B A 3,573 5,034
Net cash flows used in investing BRELHMARERE
activities FEE (31,023) (13,440)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEZBHHRLSAKE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares upon 717{# Eﬁ%% FEITRG
exercise of share options P15 3018 27(a) 1,845 1,109
Amounts paid for shares fo\ﬁﬁlﬁlﬁﬁ (NS
repurchased 27(b) (563,170) -
Dividends paid 2R A (36,453) (63,311)
New bank borrowings IR ITE R 46,734 263,345
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIEITEX (60,794) (386,009)
Interest paid 2 HE (443) (3,562)
Lease payments HENR 25 (14,933) (11,942)
Net cash flows used in financing RELHMARERE
activities E (117,214) (200,370)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BE&RBESZEYRED
CASH EQUIVALENTS B8 (42,131) (12,476)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYREeRRSZEY
beginning of the year . 315,211 328,684
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN [ 3R B Bh ) 52 B F
changes, net 3,727 (997)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £ FXBRE&RBEESZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 276,807 315,211
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRASEEYHER
CASH AND CASH waks
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITE R 20 176,807 174,923
Time deposits with original maturity B REIEH 2K =@
of less than three months when A®TEBER
acquired 20 100,000 140,288
Cash and cash equivalents as stated AR & REXRMEHIE S
in the consolidated statement of FBReEEY
cash flows 20 276,807 315,211
ZECFTFFH BRBRE 85




Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3R Y &

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

1.

86

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM
10, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1,
Kwai Tak Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were engaged in the

following principal activities:

° processing and sale of coffee, tea and related
complementary products

° sale of frozen processed food
° sale and rental of coffee and tea machines

o food and beverage store operations
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

M~ B &R

REAREEER (&)

RARREEWMBRABFBWT

follows:
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered  equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
ML R BRTEE/ VNGY 3
a9 REXMH ot i R & BEEAl TEED
Direct  Indirect
EE &
Dongguan Tsit Wing Food PRC/Mainland HK$78,880,000 - 100 Processing of coffee beans;
Co Ltd.* China distribution of coffee, tea,
and related complementary
products; and food and
beverage store operations
RERREmARAA RE/HEAN 78,880,000 T MIMBES - DM X R
HRREED: RmRER
e E
Shanghai Tsit Wing Food PRC/Mainland US$2,400,000 - 100  Trading of coffee, tea and
Co Ltd.* China related complementary
products; sale and rental of
coffee and tea machines;
and sale of frozen
processed food
TERERmARAA B/ B A 2,400,000% 7T EEM FREWREE
o HEREEMY KRR
®ARHESRARR M
Tsit Wing Beverage Machine Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of coffee machines
Company Limited and related products
ERERRBABRLA 0 28T EEMERIERER
Tsit Wing Coffee Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Processing of coffee beans;
Limited distribution of coffee, tea
and related complementary
products; sale and rental of
coffee and tea machines;
and sale of frozen
processed food
ERMBEERAR N 10,000/ 1T TIPS -~ 2 Emek KR

HAKEER  HEMMEE
OEE R R ARHE R
REHRR @
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2020

2020412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1. RARKEEESN (&)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered  equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MK R ERTER/ ANEEIG
£ REX®E it il R & BEAOH TEED
Direct  Indirect
E# A &
Tsit Wing Cold Chain Solutions  Hong Kong HK$100 - 100  Processing and distribution of
Company Limited frozen processed food
BRARRME BB 10078 7T MIRDHEEREHRM
Tsit Wing (China) Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
ER(PE)PEXERAA Bk 28T REER
Tsit Wing (China) Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 100 —  Investment holding
Limited
RRPEERERAR BN 18T REER
Tsit Wing (China) Industrial Hong Kong HK$22,264,780 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
RPE)EXERAA B 22,264,780 1T REER
Tsit Wing (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,143,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EREE(RE)BERAA Bk 5,143,000 7 REER
Tsit Wing International Company  British Virgin US$10,276 100 — Investment holding
Limited* Islands
EBRENES 10,276 T REEKR

The statutory financial statements of these companies are

not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

* These companies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises established under PRC law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirement of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value.
They are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000)
except when otherwise indicated.

On 29 November 2019, the Group disposed of its frozen
meat business in Hong Kong which represented a major
line of the Group’s business in the food products
segment in Hong Kong. Accordingly, this disposed frozen
meat business was regarded as a discontinued operation
of the Group in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued QOperations
(“HKFRS 5”) during the year ended 31 December 2019.
Further details of the transactions are set out in note 11
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

HEFBEBRRDIBBERESFMLE
(FEEETEAE])BM2ELMBER
SEAN(HEEVBREEL D (BEEE
BEEMBREER FHEEHEN(E
BEERDERE) RBEERAREFIR
AREFBARGIZEERERE

BRERAFEAENTESRIT AN It
EMBRRTIIRE LK AE DI AREL - 1t
EMHHRERABTTAET) 2 K5
BEPAN FBESROBEREIOITN
B (TEIT) -

F2019F11 A20H  AE B R EH &R
BEEXH Bt REEFEVBREE
BISESSRFFER E R O AR EEZ I E)
BE (BB BREERFESR])  HE
2019F12H31HIEFE - RIEEE HE®W
SRABEEBERAASE —BE K IE
MEEK BLZFBERHN T XXM -

EHEE
HRAVBBREEARRREWE QA
(B AIARNEE]) N E £2020F12 431
BEFEMNRBHRER - MBARALR
AEESFAEEFHNER (BELABEE
B EASEH2HREHREKNZ
PO mAERBRIZEEFNAREER
HIEEHENEHD(IAEBER TIRE
BENNETBREHRIEBB TSN THE
)R E% 5O R - BIEUS R -
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202012 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

90

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

as

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

revised

Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39

and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendment to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

2.1

2.2

mEEE (F)

BOFEE (B

fisd AN &= B 2K 5 4 — T B BB % A A0 4% )
B BEREERNZNBRARNEE
(BEEE) RRE ()R FFZERERD
BREME (i) DA LN RFITE
ER G LRI ENRARE ()
REBETARENRAE Rii)BEFE
MALEENEGKER - TATRE
2 T W 25 P T AR O AN 55 B B 1 B0 10 4%
AEBCEERLENBEEEXREME
ROBREEEHR S BERERIFRE E
MOERIERME) °

EBREBBREKE

AEBRAFENMBHRERRERXERR
2018 B & MR IER RIA T RIERT &
MG LR

BEMBRE LR XFaEE
35 (BRI A)
BAMBHRE LR F/lxEEN =

FOR - BEG
At A RIS 395% I

FRMHREE

AIE75 (B F]

)

BEMBRE LR COVID-19F i 2
e (BRI A)  EB (JRFHM)
ERGHENET EZUHNES

LR EEERE
A FE85E (B 5]
)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 B BRBERIEE (A)
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Except for the amendments included in Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, which are not A 2395% I &8 B % M &5 £ B B 758 (12
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s consolidated AR BREMEIIINZEEITRHAEE
financial statements, the nature and impact of the HRAEMBEBRRERER) 2018 B #HE
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and BRELEREET AV HREEND
the revised HKFRSs are described below: MERZEHIWET :

BEBMBREERNES BEGE

2018 BH &2 EX(THSIE
BDHIBEYBHRS RZESTE
MEERS  BIRMEESI UEMB
WERBES T — RO FETER
WIRHBB FEHINERRE R R EE

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (@)
(the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in

developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes
new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated
definitions and recognition criteria for assets and

Al- S ERBERABAERRS
MBRANFTEL  FRIUEER
BENMBBENMESINAREEREA
BEEHE R N ERFE - HINE
BEE BEIFETHEEMERE
BREZABE - BMOERLIFES—
HER - BEFBESBRSHMER

BEEA AN SHRE - BHSIE
RSB IR M RB BB
MEBRTE -

liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship,
prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 S BKREBHREE (&
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b) Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide (o) &I WwE &R EIRUSETA)

additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

BREBZTEWREEINES -
ZEBIEE HR—RIERA
EB2BAEHREE ENEAESR
LEE-BEAREEMBE  H#
R EEL ZENIELEXRE
Bt ¥ NETBESEZE LT
ELARARBREZERLTE
- ZEBITNEHME2EER
BERNESEBITEEELED
Zfmo AR EMIESZIEA
NESZEEUHRRERE XRY A
BEHZENERERER %%
BRI N EH s EE B2 @E
MEPREZERIRE - KEK
A BEEE 2 EAUWA o B
ZEBRTRMEIES - LA EG 2
BEEGFEBEE N Wl ANEE
MAFEEFRIH  AFFH— R
BB ISR EERGWIE—THE
BETHEF G NEEBE BB
3B E A 720201 A1 B sk 2 14 3%
ERRGREMEN - ZEEETH
7 & B 9 B 75 R O B 3R 3R BE A AR ]
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

94

(©)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the immediately
preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with
earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.

lease

there is no

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
monthly lease payments for the leases of the
Group’s office premises and warehouse have been
reduced or waived by the lessors as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic and there are no other changes
to the terms of the leases. The Group has early
adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and
elected not to apply lease modification accounting
for all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic during the year
ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly, a reduction
in the lease payments arising from the
concessions of HK$619,000 has been accounted for
as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of
the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

rent
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 B BEREBHREE (&)
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)  Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new d) BEGHEAFIREREBEE
definition of material. The new definition states that A8 (BRI R RBEERZHE
information is material if omitting, misstating or BoHMERIA MEHER X
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to BEHEMTE mMABEHRTES
influence decisions that the primary users of general FERE-RABRZUBHRERZE
purpose financial statements make on the basis of EEAERZEMBREKRIEL 2R
those financial statements. The amendments clarify T RIEHBEKRK - ZEBIF
that materiality will depend on the nature or BECEEUKRTFERTEEREE
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments M (EEMEDZ)ME - ZFE]H
did not have any significant impact on the financial AEBARKCEZGRES TP HTBE
position and performance of the Group. BRBMEEMTE ZZEITHAE

SEMPT B RREBELME
25 o
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 EHE#GEMKAEMNE BB R

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

HE

AEBVERLEVBERRPEAUAT
ERMERER 2] REETEF LR

in these financial statements. THIREZER -

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual BEAMBHMEER #MRIELES?

HKFRS 3 Framework? F35 (5] A)

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BB mEER FIXREENE
HKFRS 9, HKAS — Phase 2 FO5 - BAEGE — EZ B
39, HKFRS 7, AE Rl 553937
HKFRS 4 and BB BREE
HKFRS 16 BISE75% - &5

B 7% 3R 45 A Al
FARRBBWIE
s AR E1658
CHEN)

EBMBREER REZRABELN
FIORREET AEAErE
a1 7 Bl 552857 i ay & E M E S
(& ET ) (2011) AN

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BBV BEREER RESAP
FA7HR

Amendments to Insurance Contracts® © BBV BEHREER REpsAPR°
HKFRS 17 EAVCACEHIPN)

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as BAEGHERNEY BES BB LB
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current® CHEN) FETEP°

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment: ARG ER WE - BERE
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended ESLACHFN) 1% KT FE AT

Use? H AT 13 7 15

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of BB EREIT HELL — ETT
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract? SR (EETAN) & 49 B K 72

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1, EEYBHIHREER BAMBREER
to HKFRSs 2018- HKFRS 9, lllustrative 2018%F £2020%F E1% - BEYB
2020 Examples accompanying B F B 2 ¥ E 2RI FO5R

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412 BB RELE
AIZE165R BE M 2
R RE 0 0] o &
B A 415
CHESE

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! 20211 A1R BB FE BHE
2021 A

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 MR2022F1 R1H S H g m e F = B
2022 R

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 8 M2023F1 A1H S H B M e FE B
2023 Y
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 T M {B 4 K 4 MM & 8 B 15 )%
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING EE (&
STAN DARDS (Continueqd)
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 4 M AR EER AR B H - B AT A
for adoption
5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong 5 ERER G ERFEIR BTN
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements R BERERESRUBHRENER —
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that EAANG B G 1L EEEIRA A EHE
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in Y 77 25 B R2020F 10 B /T8 F] - A
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no @ﬁﬁ[ﬁa R — B AR AR R N
change in conclusion
6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued 6 EB2020F 108 EH BB 5w S
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the R ZB175R 2 B FT B 45 R - PA20234F 1
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS A1BZ RGN FESRRB  FEUK
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning HEAFBARDELRERT  LERR
before 1 January 2023 ST IR bE A FE R BB & 5t 4RI 25 395% M 3F

FERMBHRELEFORNERH R

Further information about those HKFRSs that are EHHERRAEE 2 5B BN BR
expected to be applicable to the Group is described HFEREAZE-—FTERR T XHi -
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a BEEVBRELERNES R 2BFTEEMNU
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation 2018F6 A B M) 5| A B E M IESR
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference B ﬁ S| LRI B &R ZEDHE
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting % MEBARNEERZEHETE - ZZEF]
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its JTEVL%/%Eﬁf*#&%ﬁ?ﬂ%%ﬁ?ﬁf%aFﬁ
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an MeERUNETHEXNEEXBECLAR
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer 2 ERIRANIE R —BOIIME R © 5% B 5b
to the Conceptual Framework to determine what BARE HRAUEBRE S ER
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies BRI EB (BRI BEHREREEZS
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be 2)—- REZFAVHEEANEBGERIA
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they BEME MZSABEBEBELEMIE
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a REEXEHTELE  AIEBEBTBR
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should HERAFEIFRHNEREED S EDTBGET
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead ERIEITHABE (BRI BRERER
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the B®)— REF215%  MIIEWIIESR
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify Hh - ZFEBFTEBXARAEENYE A H
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects TFR& RGN - REETEF B2022F1
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January A1B BRI KA ZEEE] - HRZEE
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to FIIRATEARNKER B A E RER A
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on R ENEBEN BASE IEA Py
or after the date of first application, the Group will not be A I eXZFEIINrE

affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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98

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continueqd)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 EHE#GEMKAEMNE BB R

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HE (&

STANDARDS (Continueqd)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out & BB 7 # & 2E RII20189F 220204 18 B
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples H)F B S| BB S B R R $
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the P BAVBREERFESR  BAUK
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the #&%/EE‘J%%% BEFT - B P R BB
Group are as follows: FEREBMFUBETAR) - BHHH K

SEBEANETNFBOT

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that s BEMBWMEEAFIORELHTA :
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms BEEEBETEVeRABEHLEE
of a new or modified financial liability are eRmBBENGRERERSRME
substantially different from the terms of the original ENRABEAEZEZERAEENE
financial liability. These fees include only those paid H-ZEEREREERABRER
or received between the borrower and the lender, /\ZF‘?S‘ZH‘JZHSZHXE’]%FH BIEE
including fees paid or received by either the RAKERARKRS —F sl
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity HXE’\JL%% ERYNEEREHENE
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are RZIERTNFEREHREMEREK
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of ZIEBEHNHIXBNEF A ERERZ
the annual reporting period in which the entity first B3] » Z1EFTR2022F1A1H sk 2
applies the amendment. The amendment is effective BFBEFEERMEER - £ FFIRA
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January A TEHZEITTeHAEEN
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The BB ERENERNTE -

amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

e HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of e FBABUBHRELAFIRKHEE M
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold MR &8 B 7 s &5 4E Bl 551658 P B #9
improvements in lllustrative Example 13 TR EE N EARBEREN
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential HEFER WRAERERTAEY
confusion regarding the treatment of lease BmELEANB16RNSEHEEERE
incentives when applying HKFRS 16. REHETRE -
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets

acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

its annual

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
subsequent period.

amount

in a
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement s
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(iv)

(il

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part,
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

provides key management
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Shorter of the lease terms
and 2.2%
4% to 33.33%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customer relationship and trademark are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 7
and 10 years, respectively.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

108

@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the wunderlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease
received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

incentives

Leasehold land
Leased properties

36 to 50 years
2 to 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXREHEERE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HeE (&)
Group as a lessee (Continued) FEFERERBA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities b)) HEEE
Lease liabilities are recognised at the HEBERHERKBARZHEER
commencement date of the lease at the present NI TELMBEEN K2 RE T AR
value of lease payments to be made over the lease Re-MENKBEEEENK(BEE
term. The lease payments include fixed payments B EE MR R E R EE
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any ﬁ‘ﬁﬁWE%{_ﬁf‘J?E’JT“ﬂEH
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments U RFSGEBERE THEEE
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts 1‘JL RIH - HEN 7]"\33%2'&%./\
expected to be paid under residual value ERETENBEEEEENTTERE
guarantees. The lease payments also include the FEBEIEBEEmS RS (0
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably MR ASETHERIEHEERE
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments RE) o TEURARIBE A R ayn] 1
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease ENFELREBENZINSEHXE
term reflects the Group exercising the option to MEEEAER AR -

terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, FEHEMNRNRAER  mEER
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the FIBREMANETNSETE  AIAEH
lease commencement date because the interest rate FAREERGBHNEEEER
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After XA E -RNHEAKRBHE BEAE
the commencement date, the amount of lease B2 REIE I - RERFIE G - I
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of FEL M E R FKmR A o o -
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. WA EMER(BNEREE - HER
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is HEE (flmiEs bt ExmEEE
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in BB ARKEENREEZ L)X E
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a ENBEENEEESGHEMNER)
change to future lease payments resulting from a BlEfzI2=HEaEMNERAEE-

change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately AEEMEEEBERUBRAERA
in the statement of financial position. BEBEZET o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

24 EXEFTHERBE (E)

HE (&)

EEEEBEBA ()

) RHAHEREEEBZEEZHE
AEBEKEHHERRARCEAK
EhRENEHEENBEHEER
mABMESEMS T @A LN
T UYTHETEEREEEERENE
5 HENMHUEEENHIRBLET
REKHEERRMEEEEEHER

o

o

RERHBEREE
46 B K it B

RYATERE - SRMEESEI R BE
LB HK AT E -

RAHERE  SREESHIORRE
BEENGMNASREFHMAKEE
BZEeREENEGEA -KRIES
ABEXDIAEKECERBATRES
ENTHBEAREAKMBONTEH
B o R HRIEIN REBVIRRATFE
MmEHERMEEL R D FE AR
BIRGRAESHEE - W EBAR
B RASEECERAATEE AN
B 5 R IARE T XU AR A&
BREEBMERE L FIGRETEDN

RHERFE-

RECHREERBHERADBERGE
FELAARAINEAERAREERESH
B NARE RAME (TXHAE R
MEWBReRE - BERAEEBR
BORERYFARSNAE G
MEMEEDBR/RAFEFAER -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement — Financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXREHEERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets RIEBREHEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a TREE(KINER cRHEEMNEFI

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial DR —HEUSREENEFRES) EE

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the ETIERTRILERCIEAEEEZS

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) MR REKPZR)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have . BEEKRNReRENENE E
expired; or Wk

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash s AEBECHEFHBEEEWIRSR
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation EMEN - HNERKRITEIER|Z B &
to pay the received cash flows in full without H&Eﬂiﬁkﬁﬁmﬁiﬂ—l—ﬂ‘”ﬁ%{ﬁﬁ
material delay to a third party under a SREMEINTE=ZATNEE:
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the FaAEBE o #@EzEENR R
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and [2 B Kz [B] 3R - 8k (b) AN 5 B 3 A 1 iE
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither _JM% BEEMBRKIE» R R EE
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and M R B B YT % °
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash WMAEBECEZEASEEKDRBEERE

flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through E’J%ﬂ BRI ERELH  HEFEE

arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has BREBZBEENERERE R & E R

retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. LA MREMEE - WASEL EEEN

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially REBEEMNBRE DR R KE R INE

all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred EREEMZHE IXSETEES

control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the HEENBATHEREEB REE - £%

transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing BAT  AREETEREEEE BEE

involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also EENHEBEGENERERRAEEEREA

recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset BARBBHEESE -

and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee W FEEEERBEERMSESL M
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the AINZBEEMRREHENAEET]
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum RABNOERREUURESE RE)F
amount of consideration that the Group could be required o

to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 120 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or
non-current or separated into current and non-current
portions based on an assessment of the facts and
circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the
end of the reporting period,
classified as non-current (or separated into current
and non-current portions) consistently with the
classification of the underlying item.

the derivative is

° Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

° Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying
hedged item. The derivative
separated into current portions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.

instruments,

instruments are

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2020
202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2020F12 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continueq)
When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continueq)

124

®)

(©)

Leasing of coffee and tea machines

leasing of coffee and tea
machines is recognised over time in accordance
with the terms of respective underlying agreements
because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from the

Sale of goods with leasing of coffee and tea
machines

The Group also provides leasing of coffee and tea
machines with the sale of coffee and tea products.
If customers’ purchases of coffee and tea products
reach the agreed minimum amount, the rental
charge of machines for that month will be waived.
Such pricing arrangements are settled monthly or
quarterly and the rental of machines is bundled
together with the sale of coffee and tea products.

The contracts for bundled sale of goods with leasing
of coffee and tea machines comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to
transfer the goods and provide leasing of coffee and
tea machines are capable of being distinct and
separately identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction
price is allocated based on the relative standalone
selling prices of the selling prices of the coffee and
tea products and rental of coffee and tea machines.
The revenue recognition of the sale of goods and
leasing of coffee and tea machines is set out above.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Government subsidies are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the government subsidies will
be received and all attaching conditions will be compiled
with, as further explained in the accounting policies for
“Government grants” above.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Group transfers the related goods or
services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants to recognise their contribution to the Group.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value was determined by an external valuer using
a binomial model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

128

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes

The Company continues to operate an occupational
retirement scheme registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. This
scheme has been granted exemption pursuant to Section
5 of the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. When an
employee leaves the scheme before his/her interest in the
Company’s employer contributions vesting fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Company are
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

Since December 2000, the Group operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries. The Company’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Contributions from these schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the schemes. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

130

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and leasing of machines

The Group provides leasing of coffee and tea machines
that are either sold separately or bundled together with
the sale of coffee and tea products to a customer. The
leasing of machines are a promise to transfer services in
the future and are part of the negotiated exchange
between the Group and the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and leasing of machines (Continued)

The Group determined that both sale of coffee and tea
products and leasing of coffee and tea machines are
capable of being distinct. The fact that the Group
regularly sells both coffee and tea products and leasing of
machines on a stand-alone basis indicates that the
customer can benefit from both products on their own.
The Group also determined that the promises to transfer
coffee and tea products and to lease the coffee and tea
machines are distinct within the context of the contract.
The sale of coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee
and tea machines are not inputs to a combined item in
the contract. The Group is not providing a significant
integration service because the presence of the sale of
coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee and tea
machines together in the contract does not result in any
additional or combined functionality and neither the coffee
and tea products nor the leasing of coffee and tea
machines customises the other. In addition,
and tea products and leasing of coffee and tea machines
are not highly interdependent or highly interrelated,
because the Group would be able to sell the coffee and
tea products even if the customer declined leasing of
coffee and tea machines and vice versa. Consequently,
the Group allocated a portion of the transaction price to
the sale of coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee
and tea machines based on relative stand-alone selling
prices.

the coffee
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to ageing analysis
and other specific assessments of the Company’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of
goods based on historical sales patterns and other
specific attributes, and management experience and
judgement. Based on such review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
values. Due to changes in market and economic
environment and customers’ preference, actual saleability
of goods and actual selling prices that could be realised
might be different from the original estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.

Provision of expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The provision rate of trade receivables is made based on
the assessment of their recoverability and the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables as well as other
quantitative and qualitative information and on
management’s judgement and assessment of the
forward-looking information. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future. Information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

EXSTHERMEE (F)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) HEFTREM (&)
Impairment of non-financial assets HEHEEZHE

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-of
use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets, observable market
prices, or transaction prices of similar assets in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions
that occurred at those prices, or other valuation
techniques, as appropriate, less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the beverage solutions (“Beverage Solutions”)
segment processes and distributes coffee, tea and
related complementary products, sells food and
beverages, coffee machines and other related
products, operates food and beverage store and
leases coffee and tea machines; and

(b)  the food products (“Food Products”) segment trades
frozen processed food.

AEBEREREMRAMBITREE
(BRERABEE) FEREFEEMAR
ER-FEREENBPRBRAE
BAWEREERETRENR - WE
EXBRcELEUZEMEBRBEATK
O & 58 (A1 E 2P ER H SR AR EFE A
BEZESE) AFERE-  RFER
HEXRRDREBEFTBERUEEZ ANR
NAFHEXSGRBZE8E ABREM
LERIBUEEARTERME 2R
SER (HEHBARMRZFERLIRN
R AHREEN RO ZB R H A
AR (@ ) ) Bt & 5% & B 2 18 0
RAGE - EFtEERERR  EEEY
AL RABEXRCELEN ZEH
ARBRERE - WIEFAERR XU
BREReREZRE -

e HEHR

REBEMME AEBRERRES
HHEBEL MET2HNGEHH
mE

(@ EHRRIRB((EKRKRERKD D
BT Ko sHNGE - R RBAEE
Em EERMLEER TR
HiBHER K2R\ RERE
A K2 ot OO0 B Ko 2R

)
Bo wm
o E O
=
s
o
L
)
okk
eS|
I
pir
iy
St
St
il
s

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG 135



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

4.

136

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

On 29 November 2019, the Group disposed of its frozen
meat business in Hong Kong. Since the frozen meat
business represented a major line of Food Products
segment in Hong Kong, the frozen meat business was
regarded as a discontinued operation in accordance with
HKFRS 5. Accordingly, the related financial comparative
information of the frozen meat business was not included
in the operating segment information from the continuing
operations. Further details of the discontinued operation
are set out in note 11.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing operations.
The adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing
operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax from continuing operation except that
interest income, fair value changes on derivative financial
instruments, head office and corporate expenses as well
as non-lease-related finance costs are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments,
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with

reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDILER (&)
(Continued)

Year ended 31 December £ £2020F12A31H

2020 HFEE
Segment revenue (note 5) 2 BB A (Hf 35)
Sales to external customers HETISRP 623,261 15,246 638,507
Segment results DEBEE 102,317 1,805 104,122
Reconciliation: HHE
Interest income FEWA 3,685
Corporate and unallocated rERKRIERSZFHE

expenses, net (15,585)
Finance costs (other than MEKAKN(HEAE

interest on lease liabilities) ) BBR AN (443)
Profit before tax from SEREEBBR

continuing operations T A & 91,779

Other segment information: Htb 5 HEE :

Depreciation and amortisation 1 & K # &4 38,856 69 38,925
Reversal of impairment of trade & 5 & W % 78 i (& # [0
receivables (614) = (614)
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 & W 3 B R (B 785 50 835
Write-off of trade receivables & 5) JiE Ug 3t 78 il 5 1,286 - 1,286
Write-down of inventories to net 17 & E = 7] 217
realisable value FE 748 8 756
Write-off of inventories & MH 721 58 779
Loss on disposal of items of  HEWE - BEKHZE
property, plant and EHEERE
equipment 81 - 81
Capital expenditure* RN 33,579 695 34,274
* The capital expenditure includes purchases of other items * EARZBEFABEBEREMDE  KE
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets REEBLEFEAEEE D A
of HK$19,545,000 and HK$6,307,000, respectively, and 19,545,000/ 7T 126,307,000/ 7T * A K&
deposits for purchases of other items of property, plant BEEHEHMYE BELARXBEEKRR
and equipment of HK$8,422,000 incurred during the year. 8,422,000/ T °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BESIWER (&)

(Continued)

N

As at 31 December 2020 72020128318
Segment assets PTHEE 400,085 7,560 407,645
Reconciliation: B -
Corporate and unallocated rERKDEEE

assets 277,095
Total assets BERE 684,740
Segment liabilities PEHEE 128,338 761 129,099
Reconciliation: B
Corporate and unallocated TrERRIEEE

liabilities 3,138
Total liabilities BERE 132,237
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BESWER ()

(Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ZREKE R R &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2019 # £2019412H31H
FE
Segment revenue (note 5) b1 QNI )
Sales to external customers HETIINERP 765,612 19,386 784,998
Segment results PEEE 126,145 1,973 128,118
Reconciliation: R -
Interest income BB A 5,094
Corporate and unallocated TERRDERZFE
expenses, net (19,395)
Finance costs (other than MEKAKN(HEAER
interest on lease liabilities) B BRAIN (2,538)
Profit before tax from RECEXBHMER
continuing operations T3 A1 v A 111,279
Other segment information: HtbZHER :
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & K # &4 33,164 — 33,164
Reversal of impairment of trade & 5 & W 5 8 i (& £ [0
receivables (351) - (351)
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 & W 20 8 (B 775 69 844
Write-off of trade receivables & 5 J& Ut 7% 78 #f 84 230 - 230
Write-down of inventories to net 77 & & 2 A] &35 % &
realisable value 851 102 953
Write-off of inventories EX=E 6] 628 404 1,032
Loss on disposal of items of  HEWE - BEKRZE
property, plant and BEEE
equipment 91 — 91
Capital expenditure* B AR 37,445 — 37,445

The capital expenditure includes purchases of property,

plant and equipment of HK$28,865,000 and deposits for
purchases of property, plant and equipment of
HK$8,580,000 incurred for continuing operations.

EARAYBEREMBELCEEREED
¥ W E K& 128,865,000 7T A K& B
EWE - BWE K& HI%Z £8,580,000%8

G °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REHTER (&)
(Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ERKERB R &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FAET
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
Segment assets PTHEE 390,144 30,875 421,019
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and unallocated rERKDEEE
assets 317,484
Total assets EEHBE 738,503
Segment liabilities THEaE 182,413 1,134 183,547
Reconciliation: Ep 3
Corporate and unallocated rERRNEEE
liabilities 5,221
Total liabilities BEREE 188,768

140

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

==

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDILER (&)

(Continued)
Geographical information ih 32 & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KREHIBEFHKA
2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET
Hong Kong BE 418,663 498,965
Mainland China AR A D 209,876 267,032
Others H b 9,968 19,001
638,507 784,998
The revenue information of continuing operations L FESCEEBORAER TR
above is based on the locations of the customers. BREPHEMEY] -
(b) Non-current assets b) ¥REBEE
2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET
Hong Kong B 69,807 82,909
Mainland China A A 3, 88,579 78,207
158,386 160,936
The non-current asset information above is based on LTHIERBEEER NRIEBEEER
the locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax EHEY U TEEEEREBEEE
assets and financial assets. NEeREE-
Information about a major customer AR—FBXEEZEFHNER
During the year, the Group’s revenue from sales to an FR AKRERBELCEEBAEREH
external customer from continuing operations, which was E T — B INERE P 8 U A163,449,000/8
over 10% of the total revenue, amounted to 70 (20194F : 199,639,000/ JT) 1f 42 Ux A
HK$163,449,000 (2019: HK$199,639,000). #10% °
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5.

142

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET

Revenue

An analysis of disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from
contracts with customers from continuing operations is as

follows:

Was ~ b U A K U 58 F 8R

Uy 58

AEBEFE

@ T :

_—
g

EBNEP AR AR

Year ended 31 December 2020 & 20205128318
LEE

Types of goods or services ERERBEER
Sale of coffee, tea and other related 5% WIBE - 45 K E 4

complementary products HEREE M 600,315 - 600,315
Sale of frozen processed food HESRBRERM = 15,246 15,246
Rental income from leasing of 7 00 O A % AR A

coffee and tea machines Ha WA 22,891 - 22,891
Food and beverage store EmREBERERE

operations 55 = 55
Total revenue from contracts with B F A #JUW A @ %8

customers 623,261 15,246 638,507
Geographical markets i B %
Hong Kong BE 404,064 14,599 418,663
Mainland China 7B A 3 209,229 647 209,876
Others H 9,968 = 9,968
Total revenue from contracts with T FE &4 A # %5

customers 623,261 15,246 638,507
Timing of revenue recognition Y A 52 B[
Goods transferred at a point in time R EBBHEEL S H 600,370 15,246 615,616
Services transferred over time REBREEB RS 22,891 - 22,891
Total revenue from contracts with B F A #JUW A @ %8

customers 623,261 15,246 638,507

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W#H -HMWARKZZEHEE)
NET (Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
BHRKRERS B BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT FET
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=2019F12A31H
WFFE
Types of goods or services EmBREER
Sale of coffee, tea and other related 5 WIBE 45 K H 4
complementary products HEREE M 739,895 - 739,895
Sale of frozen processed food HESRBRERM — 19,386 19,386
Rental income from leasing of o 8 00 A 2 A
coffee and tea machines He WA 25,553 — 25,553
Food and beverage store EmRBEREEE
operations 164 - 164
Total revenue from contracts with B F & 4 A # 5
customers 765,612 19,386 784,998
Geographical markets i & 35
Hong Kong B5E 480,928 18,037 498,965
Mainland China A A 265,683 1,349 267,032
Others H A 19,001 - 19,001
Total revenue from contracts with T FE & 4K A @5
customers 765,612 19,386 784,998
Timing of revenue recognition W A B2
Goods transferred at a point in time R EFEE2HEZ &R 740,059 19,386 759,445
Services transferred over time NEEREERRE 25,553 — 25,553
Total revenue from contracts with B F & 4 A # 5
customers 765,612 19,386 784,998
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W# -HEMkARKZ F5E (&)

NET (Continued)

Other income and gains, net H AR WS FR
An analysis of other income and gains, net from RBLEXEBEEMBA R KR FE
continuing operations is as follows: ST

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHT
Bank interest income RITH B WA 3,685 5,094
Government subsidies* B 48 Bk~ 10,786 —
COVID-19-related rent concessions A 4 F HJCOVID-1918

from lessors HEHE 619 -
Foreign exchange difference, net PEHZE T 62 -
Others HAh 339 33
15,491 5127

* Government subsidies mainly represent subsidies received * BUF = 2R BB IERITBUE BT

in connection with the support from the Anti-epidemic R EMEES 2 TR EE) - BE &
Fund of the Government of the Hong Kong Special M2 SR AN RBITIHRESE A
Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions FIF o

or contingencies relating to these subsidies.

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. AEMRX
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is HELEXBMEREXNETINEOT :
as follows:

2019

20194

HK$'000

FET

Interest on bank borrowings |ITERFE 443 2,538
Interest on lease liabilities HE&BEMNE 998 971
1,441 3,509
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2020F12 A31H
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRFEAIEF
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations AEEFECEEBAERTIAEF D
is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB (GIA) IS EmER -
2019
2019%F
HK$’'000
FAT
Auditors’ remuneration % S Bih 35 B 2,029 2,064
Cost of inventories sold" EEFEREK" 342,021 437,379
Depreciation”: E:
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15,031 11,328
Other items of property, HEms - mENMKZEBEER
plant and equipment 23,784 21,725
38,815 33,053
Amortisation of intangible assets | B EE 110 111
Lease payments not included in the KT A E BB EHN
measurement of lease liabilities ME R 1,191 3,830
Foreign exchange differences, net* [& i, = & /F 58" (62) 719
Reversal of impairment of trade B 5 W R R E & T
receivables* (614) (851)
Impairment of trade receivables* 2 5 W IERE" 835 844
Write-off of trade receivables* B 5 FE W 3B i 1,286 230
Employee benefit expenses EERAMNMZ (BEWES
(including directors’ remuneration ~ HEHE EFHH) " :
disclosed in note 8)":
Salaries, wages, allowances and e IE&E ERIEL
bonuses* 110,683 115,507
Equity-settled share option BamEEBREN
expense 593 2,443
Pension scheme contributions RIKEEH B K
(defined contribution schemes) (REHRETED) 5,007 5,348
116,283 123,298
Write-down of inventories to net FE R ZER R FE
realisable value* 756 953
Write-off of inventories* 17 & i sE~ 779 1,032
Loss on disposal of items of HEME BEIKXEIEER
property, plant and equipment* (gl 81 9
Loss on change in fair value of PTEeRMITAEAFEEHEE"
derivative financial instruments* 718 573
Loss on deregistration of BUE MM B A A E5 i
subsidiaries” = 1,013
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 7. @ﬁﬂ'] wmA (E
These amounts are included in “Other income and gains, ZEFBEFAGZEERER ZEMKA
net” or “Other expenses, net” on the face of the RSBl [ AmA T FEIA -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
" The cost of sales for the year amounted to HK$375,453,000 " F A HE E K A A375453,000/ T
(2019: HK$475,166,000) and included cost of inventories (20194 : 475,166,000/ 7t) * B B #&
sold of HK$342,021,000 (2019: HK$437,379,000), B % 17 & B 74342,021,0007% 7T (2019
depreciation charge of HK$15,626,000 (2019: F 1 487,379,000 L) T B H X
HK$15,051,000) and employee benefit expenses of 15,626,0007 7T (20194F : 15,051,000
HK$10,433,000 (2019: HK$13,028,000). L) % B B & F F 210,433,000/ T
(20194 : 13,028,000/ T °
# Included in salaries, wages, allowances and bonuses were # AT ILE - ZFUMRAELAER
operating lease payments for staff quarters of HK$224,000 2019F12AIALLFEMETIFEELE
for the year ended 31 December 2019, which are not ME ?ﬁ224,0007%7_n CHABERA
included in measurement of lease liabilities. EBafEzRE-
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEBERIETHAEHMH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BiE EmRA - FB QA EG5E383(1)
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the @ o) c)kMEhkArr (HEEEMNm
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the B R IR I E2EB AT BE 2 N E = FHr B
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of mr
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2019
20194
HK$'000
FET
Fees fika 875 900
Other emoluments: H i 2 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥ & « ZE L EYWEF
in kind 10,258 10,1083
Performance related bonuses 4B R 8 TE 1,369 489
Equity-settled share option Hm it E ] § %F‘Fﬂi
expense 217 699
Pension scheme contributions BRESEFEIMHR
(defined contribution schemes) (R EHIRETED 785 355
13,504 12,546
146 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Certain directors were granted share options during the
year ended 31 December 2018 in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option scheme of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note
29 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

8. EERFETHAREHM (&)

H E22018F12A31BLEFE BEAR
RIERETE ATEEREHAEE
CRBERERE E—PFBEIHRY
BHmEMF0 - EAERE L, A FER
FEHBAREBESR BHESEIRR
HHHETEFALRAFEHHEERNS
HEERNLEEFHMEBEEERS -

(@) BUKHGES
ENENFBIFEATESNNS
m

2019

20194

HK$'000

FET

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang BEELAE 300 300

Mr. Wong Man Fai T EE A 300 300
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong B B % & (i)

(note i) 250 300

Mr. Lok Kung Chin (note ii) B 7% 1E 5t & (Gii) 25 —

875 900

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: Nil).

Notes:

(i) Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong passed away on
5 October 2020.

(i) Mr. Lok Kung Chin was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 10 December 2020.

The above directors’ remuneration only included
remuneration during the tenure of each independent
non-executive director of the Company.

FRAYERABIIFATEENH
i, 3 B (2019F « M%) »

B EE

0] B # & 4 A 202010 A58 #
o

(i) FBEFSIE % & B20205F12 5100 &
BEERRRAVELIFRNITESE -

NEEEHFMRBREARNRFEBE L
FHRTEETNEHAOFH -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTETHAEEM (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE

2020 20204

Mr. Wong Tat Tong HEELAE - 6,293 730 - 437 7,460

Mr. Wu Kam On Keith ~ B#% %4 - 2,416 403 130 232 3,181

Ms. Fan Yee Man BEH/ME - 1,549 236 87 116 1,988
- 10,258 1,369 217 785 12,629

2019 20194

Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEEERE - 6,292 263 - 219 6,774

Mr. Wu Kam On Keith BETEE - 2,393 113 419 89 3,014

Ms. Fan Yee Man BEGNME - 1418 113 280 47 1,858
- 10,103 489 699 355 11,646

There was no arrangement under which a director FAMBEESRNEXRERELEN

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during A & BE (20194F « £&]) ©

the year (2019: Nil).

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the FR - ANEBEYERE S T H M

Group to the directors as an inducement to join or EEMAXREB S MAREEER

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss 52 B ok 1F A& B B A9 1 B (20194F -

of office (2019: Nil) ) o
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2020F12 A31H

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group included
three (2019: three) directors. Details of the remuneration
of the five highest paid employees who are directors are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining two (2019: two) highest paid employees who
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

9. hEEREFMES
rEBRAEERTHEERE=-RES
(019F :=ZR) - FREENHLE TR
FOE B ME NGB E N LXK S - 8
TYARBEETXETETHRAENW
% (2019%F ' M &) & = 5 B 1&E 8 & %7 B
HBOT

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits — #& - ZRI R B W HZE
in kind 2,157 1,963
Performance related bonuses GBI R TE AT 173 140
Equity-settled share option expense #& %5 4% & B8 IR 7 FA 5% 39 94

Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B

(defined contribution schemes) (REHKETE) 36 36
2,405 2,233

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

FHNFUTHEENZSFHMES GFE
EMFETBTHRAR)AZMT

2019
20194

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001;% 7T £1,500,000/% 7T 2 2
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FT8 8t
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the BEABRENRALRO  NEEHEA
Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda. SN ERBREERSH -
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEREMNESHDIBREBEFAEE BRI
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits 5T AR % R B916.5% (20194F : 16.5% )
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one PR MEAEE—HRBARBRASE
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under MMRE THEEREERIN - ZHB
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first A A B 2,000,000 JT(2019%F :
HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits 2,000,000 7T) & & &R Bt /& Fl| $#28.25%
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and (2019%F : 8.25% )& T Hp ER W a
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% F 811 #216.5% (20194F : 16.5% ) #Hi o A
(2019: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland B (A b JE 2R Bt ) 2 B8 18 5 225% (2019
China have been calculated at the rate of 25% (2019: F:25% )M EFTESD -
25%).
2019
20194
Note HK$'000
B 5 FAET
Current — Hong Kong BEy — /B
Charge for the year FRXH 9,278 11,675
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBREEE (66) (205)
Current — Mainland China BNER — R E A
Charge for the year FRXH 6,476 9,193
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERETR/
in prior years (EEFE @) 72 (502)
Deferred iR i (778) 1,305
Total tax charge for the year REKEEBFANREA
from continuing operations X 14,982 21,466
Total tax charge for the year ERIEREEBFERNTIE
from a discontinued operation X H #2% 11 - 703
14,982 22,169
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRB 8 (&
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit FPREELECHEFE KRB AIRANZ
before tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax HERAMIBEYZE - Hik EEEERMER
charge at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: BEBEXHZHENOT :
2019
2019%F
HK$'000
FAET
Profit before tax from continuing RESEEBBRBRN R
operations 91,779 111,279
Loss before tax from a ERIEREEBRAIEE
discontinued operation = (11,820)
91,779 99,459
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory REBEEMEFENMIEA
tax rate 15,144 16,411
Higher tax rate applied for specific 5 7F & 13 B 4 2k th 75 # B 51 7F
provinces or enacted by local MR e B E
authority 2,210 3,895
Adjustments in respect of current 38 & HA & B HA %7 18 &9 8 =&
tax of previous periods (66) (7Q7)
Income not subject to tax B AR KA (2,289) (310)
Expenses not deductible for tax EIEE T 128 3,189
Tax losses utilised from previous — fEA B BB AT IBEEE
periods (213) (309)
Tax losses not recognised RIER IR E 1B 68 —
Tax charge at the Group’s effective I AEBERH KA EMF 1B
tax rate = 14,982 22,169
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 1. SRLEREER

On 29 November 2019 (the "“Date of Disposal”), the
Group disposed of its 60% equity interest in Whole Sun
Limited (“Whole Sun”) to its non-controlling shareholder of
Whole Sun for a consideration of HK$27,840,000. Whole
Sun is engaged in trading of frozen meat in Hong Kong
and the frozen meat business represented a major line of
the Group’s business. Following the completion of the
transaction, the disposed business (the “Disposed Frozen
Food Business”) was not included in the Food Products
segment for operating segment information and was
regarded as a discontinued operation. The disposal is a
part of the Group’s strategic plan to redirect its resource
to fit its business plan.

The results of the Disposed Frozen Food Business for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (up to the Date of
Disposal) are presented below:

2019F11 2908 (TH & B #)) - KX &
EREFESBERAR(EHDH—F
FEZE IR AR 3R H A S FTHI60% AR E - R
8 527,840,000/ T c S EE BN EE
RAEES MERABEKAELAER
M—BEEEK XPHTEKE - HEED
([HEEZRREREBKD BT ARRD
HHEEDHER THBE A —HER
EREEB HEFEAASEENRL
BRAFEEESTE MRS E — 3

e

HZEZ2019F12A31H IEFE (HEHEH
HIMNEE2RAMERELEE2WT

2019
2019%F
HK$'000
FAET
Revenue WA 225,727
Cost of sales & K AR (207,537)
Gross profit E 18,190
Other income, net Hip g A F58 42
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHAX (3,261)
Administrative expenses THRAX (8,527)
Other expenses, net HaA S F8 (168)
Finance costs Bh & B AR (1,043)
Profit from the discontinued operation BRI E B RN 5,233
Loss on disposal of the discontinued operation HEDRIELEEKER (17,053)
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation B4 1 48 S TSR TR AT RS 1B (11,820)
Income tax expense Frigfi X (703)
Loss for the year from the discontinued operation ERIEREEBIIBFABE (12,523)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the parent ~EEAR A (14,335)
Non-controlling interest FEIE R AT 1,812
(12,523)
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2020F12 A31H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 1. BRIEREEK (2

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposed REEHHEESRERETNEENR
Frozen Food Business disposed of as at the Date of BEFTEHEANDOT

Disposal are as follows:

29 November

2019
20194
11 H29H
Bt 5% HK$'000
FAET
Assets: BE
Property, plant and equipment LEN 14 838
Goodwill EES 15 15,447
Intangible assets BEEE 16 500
Inventories 78 29,144
Trade receivables = 3 25,090
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - 2 M EMEKRIE
receivables 1,371
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBEEeEEYD 9,075
Assets disposed of BEHEEE 81,465
Liabilities: EE
Trade payables E 5 5OR (7,303)
Accruals and other payables FEEH & R K B fE 3R IE (1,232)
Tax payable FETFEIR (638)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITE K (7,361)
Lease liabilities HE&E 25 (260)
Deferred tax liabilities BRI IR & & 26 (147)
Liabilities disposed of EHEAE (16,941)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 64,524
Non-controlling interests IR = (19,631)
Loss on disposal of a discontinued HEDRIELEEBEE
operation (17,053)
Satisfied by: EXSPEE
Cash Be 27,840
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)  11. BRI EE £ (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HHESREMEKNLESTENE S
in respect of the disposal of the Disposed Frozen Food REZEEBMFERANDITAOT :
Business is as follows:

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HeRE 27,840
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERERACEEYD (9,075)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of & — i B A FHIRE &I
the disposal of a subsidiary EBWERA 18,765
The net cash flows incurred by the Disposed Frozen Food HE2019F12A31H I EE (EEHEH
Business for the year ended 31 December 2019 (up to HHEZRRRESEEANREREF
the Date of Disposal) are as follows: LER (N
2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBARSRESREFE 42,569
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEXBFARSREFHE (26)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEXGMAREREFHE (39,192
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEBYWHBINFER 3,351
HK cents
Rl
Loss per share from the discontinued operation: B IFEEEHETREIE
Basic BN (1.88)
Diluted g (1.87)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)  11. BRI EE £ (&)
The calculations of loss per share from the discontinued EERIEKREXETTRE B EE

operation are based on:

2019
20194
HK$’'000
FAET
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of NElEBERERB ARG
the parent from the discontinued operation ERIEKEEBERER (14,335)
000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FR st EEREREFHF K
and issuable during the year, used in the basic BT RAIETEBRINE
earnings per share calculation (Note 13) T B (H7E13) 762,931
Weighted average number of ordinary shares, used in FARA 5 & 5 i% #5822 7 &9
the diluted earnings per share calculation (Note 13) 3% 3@ A% Hn4E 7 5 & (B 5£13) 764,302
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12.

156

DIVIDENDS 12. RE

The dividends recognised and proposed by the Company
during the reporting period are as follows:

AR AR R S BRI R R BUR 2 B8 0
N

2019
20194
HK$’'000
FAT
Dividends recognised as distribution ¥k 2 Effd i 32 & 9 Ik 2 f% 8. -
during the reporting period:
2018 final dividend — HK5.78 2018F R EI IR B
cents per ordinary share — BREEARS.78E U — 44,066
2019 interim dividend — HK2.52 20194 /R HA % &
cents per ordinary share — BiRE@AR2.52%5 1 - 19,245
2019 final dividend — HK3.33 2019 KRB X B
cents per ordinary share — B E®AR3.33% 24,916 -
2020 interim dividend — HK1.58 20204 /1 HA % &
cents per ordinary share — BREEAR1.58%F U 11,537 -
36,453 63,311
Dividend proposed after the end of R&EHIKR & Z IR MBS
the reporting period:
Proposed final dividend — BEAHRKRE
HK4.00 cents (2019: HK3.33 — IR EAR4.00% 1L
cents) per ordinary share (20194 : 3.33/& 1) 28,824 24,916

The proposed final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2020 has been calculated by reference to
720,591,512 shares in issue at 4 March 2021 and is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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31 December 2020
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. BRRERESREAEEER

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
744,055,000 (2019: 762,931,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
for the year is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and (i) the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and (i)
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all dilutive potential share options into ordinary
shares.

27

B E2020F12A31H IEFE BRER
BRADBRES AT BEREEARE
FRHEFRFRNSETEBRMNETFY
#744,055,0000% (20194 : 762,931,000
RIOGTESHE -

AERREIEEREADERERARAE
BREDFTAE ARG GNGE - LEMO)S

R BEERNERBNNFADETER

PpniEF 8 A R (i) RBRBEARIETES
MABEEEBR SRS EBREE
BHTHEBBRIMNEFGE -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. BAREEREEAEAELGER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE R (&)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share FTEERERARBERFTIRE

are based on:

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT
Earnings B 7
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary AR ESBRER L EEZEF
equity holders of the parent, used KIS AREBEERIFEA
in the basic and diluted earnings  FEME % I,/ (E18) :
per share calculations:
From continuing operations REFESEED 76,797 89,813
From a discontinued operation KE—IHERIEREERS - (14,335)
76,797 75,478
’000 000
TR T’
Shares i)
Weighted average number of AR ESRERBFNNFEA
ordinary shares in issue and BT RAIEHTERRINE
issuable during the year, used in  F1##
the basic earnings per share
calculation 744,055 762,931
Effect of dilution — weighted BEyE — LTERmE
average number of ordinary T8
shares:
Share options R 981 1,371
Weighted average number of AU ESRESRAIN L@
ordinary shares, used in the % 0 - 15 81
diluted earnings per share
calculation 745,036 764,302
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14ME- -BERRE

31 December 2020 20205128318
At 1 January 2020: R2020%1A18
Cost A 13,877 38,201 52,168 50,646 155,793 76,535 9,587 292,561 344,729
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNEREE
impairment (3,179) (10,926) (14,105) (20,770) (93,601) (62,212) (6,636) (183,219) (197,324)
Net carrying amount SEFE 10,698 21,365 38,063 29,876 62,192 14,323 2,951 109,342 147,405
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated R0NE1A18  AB £
depreciation and impaiment HEREE 10,698 27,365 38,063 29,876 62,192 14,323 2,951 109,342 147,405
Additions AE 6,954 121 7,075 C 11,645 11,636 790 24,07 31,146
Depreciation provided for the year ERitiEnE (441) (14,590) (15,031) (1,443) (15,729) (5,397) (1,215) (23,784) (38,815)
Disposals tE = = = = (580) V] - (582) (582)
Exchange realignment Ex@z 1,085 118 1,173 1,662 1,625 296 3 3,586 4,759
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated 20205124318 + Mk
depreciation and impairment ZHAERAE 18,266 13,014 31,280 30,005 59,153 20,856 2,529 112,633 143913
At 31 December 2020: R2020F12A318 :
Cost A 2417 38,629 60,746 52,959 164,104 89,419 10,236 316,748 377,464
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERAE
impairment (3,851) (25,615) (29,466) (22,864) (104,951) (68,563) (7,707) (204,085) (233,551)
Net carrying amount EERE 18,266 13,014 31,260 30,005 50,153 20,856 252 112,633 143,913
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

160

14 % BERRE(E)

(Continued)
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
FREsE BHERE
Furniture,
Leasehold Leased Plantand  fixtures and Motor
land properties Total Buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total Total
FEEE
HELH BEn% At BT RRRER RERZR A& EEl At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThEn TR TER ThR ThT ThT TR TR TER
note (a), (c)) (note (o))
(Fa), (@) (B3(0))
31 December 2019 2019128318
At 1 January 2019: R201951A1A :
Cost HA 11,313 18,240 29,553 51,385 143213 71,372 9,191 215,161 344,729
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERAE
impaiment - - - (19.501) (86,267) 61,161) 5,549) (172478) (197,324)
Net carrying amount FETE 11,313 18,240 29,553 31,884 56,946 10,211 3,642 102,683 132,236
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated 20191818 1 Bt
depreciation and impairment ERAE 11,313 18,240 29,553 31,884 56,946 10211 3,642 102,683 132,236
Additions RE - 20,637 20,637 - 21,535 7881 1,247 30,663 51,300
Depreciation provided for the year ERitiEnE (392) (11,267) (11,659) (1.459) (15,415) (3,629) (1.404) 21,900 (33,559)
Disposals HE - - - - (323) @ - (325) (325)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) HE-RNBLRA M) - (255) (255) - - (51) (532) (583) 839)
Exchange realignment Ex@% (203) 10 (213 (556) (551) 87) 2 (1,196) (1,409)
At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated ~ H2019F12A318 + Mk
depreciation and impairment ZHAERAE 10,698 27,365 38,063 29,876 62,192 14,323 2951 109,342 147405
At 31 December 2019: 2019127318 :
Cost A 13877 38,291 52,168 50,646 155,793 76,536 9,587 292,561 344,729
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERAE
impaiment [3179) (10926) (14,108) (20,770) (93601) 62212) (6,636) (183219) (197,324)
Net carrying amount FETE 10,698 21,365 38,063 29,876 62,192 14,323 2,951 109,342 147,405
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2019, included in prepaid land lease
of the Group’s right-of-use assets is a piece of leasehold
land (the “Leasehold Land”) with a carrying amount of
HK$3,542,000 situated in Mainland China under collective-
owned land ownership (588 T #{# /) and the Group also
had items of property, plant and equipment of
HK$3,084,000 attached to the Leasehold Land (the
“Attached Properties”), which are mainly served as staff
quarters of the Group. In the prior years, to facilitate the
Group’s future development plan, the Group applied to
change the ownership type of the Leasehold Land from
collective-owned land ownership to state-owned land
ownership (Bl £ {#E ) and the stated-owned land use
right certificate was issued by relevant authority during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company leases certain of its offices, warehouses and
staff quarters. Leases for these assets are negotiated for
terms ranging from 2 to 4 years with extension or
termination options and all the lease payments are fixed.

Included in the Group’s leasehold land and building are two
warehouses in Mainland China, with the carrying amount of
HK$653,000 and HK$601,000, respectively, which the
Group was not able to obtain the real estate ownership
certificate. The two warehouses were fully depreciated in
the prior years.

14.9) ¥

B &

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG

“BERKRE(E)

PR2019% 128318 AEEFREELE
WIER tHHEEBTE —EBALAFRERA
b 52 88 + 3 (3 A BR B {8 /&33,542,000/% 7T
WAEL((HELH])  MALEEIR
A Y 3% 7 M & £ 11 #93,084,00058 JT 19 7
¥ BEMLEREEE(WEMED =
EREAEEMNETIRES NBEF
B AEGASEMRKERE K
EEFREEHEL N ERENRE
BriwEREEARALMER R
HE2020F12R31HEFEEEREAER
SEFEELIMFERESE -

ARRHERETHAZE BEBERET
BE REFEEEMNMERR2E4F - 7
EH L IE - MAMEEENRERE
e

NEBMNAE 1 M IEF M EZR
FEAMLHEE REED A
653,000/% 7T 601,000/ 7T * A& B &
EEMSREMEMBEE ZMEAEAE
RBEFEZHINE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2020

2020412 A31H
15. GOODWILL 15. &
HK$'000
FAT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1HAM KA RE®E
FE 15,447
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) e — R B AR (1) (15,447)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2019, 720194 12A31H + 20204

1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 1A18 K2020F12 H31H &Y
PR K BR TEF E -
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H

Cost at 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020, /2019412831 H K20204F

net of accumulated amortisation 1TA1TB BB - HBR REt 8 419
Amortisation provided during the year FRNEHREH (110)
Exchange realignment bE 5, 38 & 21
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 330
At 31 December 2020: 202012 AH318 :

Cost D 1,164

Accumulated amortisation REt s (834)
Net carrying amount REFE 330
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

16. B EE (&)

Customer
Trademark relationship Total
EE:3 A = B R a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAET FAET FET
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2019, 20191 B1H®
net of accumulated A - B 25
amortisation 54 540 2,333 2,873
Amortisation provided during £ A 51 12 # 4
the year (111) (1,833) (1,944)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— R E AR A
(note 11) (P 5E11) — (500) (500)
Exchange realignment PE 5 8 & (10) — (10)
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 419 — 419
At 31 December 2019: 201912 A31H -
Cost B AR 1,093 - 1,093
Accumulated amortisation 25t i (674) — (674)
Net carrying amount AREEE 419 - 419
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2020

2020412 A31H
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET
Raw materials R A 61,480 62,176
Work-in-progress £ & i 776 1,082
Finished goods 2K & 55,703 62,490
117,959 125,748
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. ES WK\
2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET
Trade receivables g 5 EKFIE 119,895 126,940
Impairment A (8,781) (8,085)
111,114 118,855

164

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where the Group
normally trades in cash on delivery. The credit periods
generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control team to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

18.

E5rWREE)
B 5 M OB 2 IR AT (R B E B 83
M BRBESEWMT

2019

20194

HK$’'000

FAET

Within 30 days 30K A 63,893 63,637
31 to 60 days 31E60X 30,455 36,861
61 to 90 days 61ZE90K 9,517 10,556
91 to 120 days 91E120K 5,741 3,970
121 to 180 days 1212180k 535 1,261
Over 180 days 8 1B180K 973 2,570
111,114 118,855

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

BHRIEREBEREEESWT

2019

20194

HK$'000

FAET

At beginning of year B € 7)) 8,085 9,812
Impairment losses recognised EERBEEIE 835 851

Impairment losses reversed BEREFE (614) (351)

Amount written off as uncollectible % 7~ A] Ug [ Hfl $4 £ 7X 18 - (2,058)

Disposal of a subsidiary & — B A A - (12)

Exchange realignment & X & 475 (157)
At end of the year RFR 8,781 8,085
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer
type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. During the vyear, the
expected loss rate for certain customers that are
credit-impaired are assessed specifically by management.
For other trade receivables aged more than one year past
due, management has not observed objective evidence of
financial difficulties of the debtors and has been taking
credit risk mitigating measures. Set out below is the
information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s
trade receivables using a provision matrix:

18. E 5 BIWFIE (&)

RERS AP RAREREETRE
D UETERMEEER - BEXE
REARBEFEBRUBERRANSZEEL D
BMETHEBIMEYERETFER)M
MNP EE AT ERBRIAEK
MEAER BEEREMRBEAHAR
MABERRBESFE B AT ARG E
RERRANEGERAEER - FR BT
EFPMEHMERX(CEERE)IHAE
BEEMEMNFE -RAaRBEE - FOHM
BHRKNKIE EEBIAHBRIER
BEBRREEHB ARV HRELRIUE
EffgER - FEASERAREREM
AAEMNEZRUKENEERREMH
ZIanE

2020 20204

Credit impaired receivables 1= & J& (& & Uk 7 18 100.00% 6,800 6,800

Other trade receivables HAE 5 WA
aged: 2 BRHER
Within 30 days 30K A 0.51% 108,416 557
31 to 60 days 31E60K 10.01% 2,348 235
61 to 90 days 61E90K 22.06% 467 103
91 to 120 days 91£120K 34.26% 216 74
121 to 180 days 121E180K 40.00% 155 62
Over 180 days B Em180K 63.63% 1,493 950

119,895 8,781
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020

2020912 A31H
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. EZEWRIE (&)
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit loss
BHEE BHEE
gk RE®E [
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
2019 20194
Credit impaired receivables 15 & &l {& & I 7 18 100.00% 6,993 6,993
Other trade receivables B E 5 EKFIE
aged: ZERER
Within 30 days 30K A 0.55% 114,634 631
31 to 60 days 31E60K 1.72% 1,919 33
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 4.04% 470 19
91 to 120 days 91E120K 6.34% 725 46
121 to 180 days 1212180k 8.25% 206 17
Over 180 days B @180k 17.36% 1,993 346
126,940 8,085

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. iR E &R HtEKRFHE
RECEIVABLES

2019

20194

HK$'000

FHET

Prepayments e RIB 7,660 12,615
Deposits birgea 3,446 3,286
Other receivables B fE U 3R 4,554 1,975
15,660 17,876

Less: Non-current portion B JERNEREE o (852) (5,024)
Current portion Bl EA =R 43 14,808 12,852
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B 7% ¥R R MY & (&)
31 December 2020
202012 A31H

19.

20.

168

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continueqd)

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the
minimal.

loss allowance was assessed to be

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19.

20.

EARE -RERHEMERRE
(4&
TALMAESR SR & E BT &
Rk E@RENEKRRIES
78 o 720204 K2019412A31H @ & 18
BETERMD -

RERRSEEY

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

e MRTTHER

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

176,807

174,923

100,000 140,288

Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY

276,807 315,211

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$57,556,000 (2019: HK$54,490,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest and the respective short
term time deposits rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

21.

22.

TRADE PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the
invoice date is as follows:

21. EZENFIE
ESENREERSTREZA )
M

2019

20194

HK$’000

FETT

Within 1 month 11#8 AN 50,134 70,653
1 to 2 months 1Z218 A 275 2,010
2 to 3 months 2% 31 A 498 3
Over 3 months B 1E31E A 688 901
51,595 73,567

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 30 to 60 days.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

B 5 RERMNKRIESRE M —RNI0EE0K
WA o

22, EETRER HMEMNKIE

2019

20194

Notes HK$’ 000

B 5 FET

Accruals FE TR 38,266 44,281
Contract liabilities aHaE (a) 841 1,399
Other payables H i E S BOR (b) 5,446 5,174
44,553 50,854
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

170

(@)

Contract liabilities represent advance payments received
from customers from the Beverage Solutions segment for
the Group to deliver the tea products. The decrease in the
contract liabilities is mainly attributed to the demand of the
tea products during the year.

Movements in contract liabilities during the year are as
follows:

22, Bt REREMENRE (B

CEE

=
\
i

EERAEERNRERMAE
Hﬁﬁ‘%/\*ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁ RIE o
%/E IEA¢WE’J Euu

(a)

¢ 2% R

4
o It B )

I} o> = o

FRAGHNABENZSHWT

2019

20194

HK$’'000

FAET

At the beginning of the year RE) 1,399 755
Additions NE 1,135 2,644
Revenue recognised during the year* FRER Y =" (1,693) (2,000)
At the end of the year RER 841 1,399

*

Revenue recognised during the year that was
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period amounted to HK$1,399,000 (2019:
HK$755,000) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The transaction prices allocated to remaining performance
obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which are
expected to be recognised within one year as at
31 December 2020 amounted to HK$841,000 (2019:
HK$1,399,000).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.
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R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020
2020F12 A31H

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. fTHE€®MIA

Liabilities =N
2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT
Forward currency contracts REE®EH 491 568
The Group has entered into various forward currency AEEBIUSERPEKSLYUNER
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. These HEY AR ZEEHINESLHKRERE
forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge FAREFEN TARBEBEREKEAFER
purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or EFEHAEBRTETENAFEEZD
loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging currency 718,000/ 7T (20194 : 573,000 7T) E
derivatives amounting to HK$718,000 (2019: HK$573,000) RERGEERRPMRE -

were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year.

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24. ;F ERI{TER

2019
20194

Effective

interest
rate (%) Maturity ~ HK$’000

R
(%) EIE NS FET

Current Bl H#A
Trust receipt loans ERBIEER
— unsecured — MK 2.35-2.60 2021 12,094 3.39-3.64 2020 26,154
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31 December 2020
202012 A31H

25.

172

LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

25 HEEE

FRAMERENEREERESBERET

2019
20194
Note HK$’'000
B 5 FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1BBER®EE 27,675 18,240
New leases FHEE 121 20,637
Accretion of interest recognised & X #E 32 & &I B 18 A0
during the year 998 990
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B AT 11 - (260)
COVID-19-related rent HH A% T BICOVID-19
concessions from lessors HEESER (619) -
Payments NE (14,933) (11,942
Exchange realignment bE 3 B 120 10
Carrying amount at M12A31 AR EREE
31 December 13,362 27,675
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BDHA B 5 8,427 14,966
Non-current portion JEBNER EF > 4,935 12,709
13,362 27,675

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

note 36 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2020

2020F12 A31H

25. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 25. HE&E (&)
As disclosed in note 2.2. to the financial statements, the WU BERERMF22MMEFEE  AEBE
Group has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 REBRAEBM B MEELF165 (1BF]
and applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent ) WAAITHREAN  ERREEA
concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain REXN BETHEMEZEHNE TH
leased properties during the year. FrEMRER® -
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to REREREBEFEN BN T :

leases are as follow:

2019
20194
HK$’'000
FAET
Interest on lease liabilities HERGENE 998 990
Depreciation charge of right-of-use (£ A EETE L H
assets 15,031 11,942
Expense relating to short-term g T & B & £2019F
leases and other leases with 12A31E 2RI E
remaining lease terms ended on Fl %
or before 31 December 2019 1,191 3,830
COVID-19-related rent concessions 1} A 45 F HCOVID-194H 7
from lessors HERE (619) -
Total amount recognised RERERR AR
in profit or loss 16,601 16,762
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31 December 2020

2020412 H318
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. iE it i 18
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BRERBEEEREENTRNZ2EFHNT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE

At 1 January 2019 20191 /1R 5,386 385 5,771
Deferred tax charged/ REREZ (G A)

(credited) to the FEeEBEmRZEL

consolidated statement Rl

of profit or loss during

the year 1,009 (302) 707
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B AT

(note 11) (M3E11) (66) (83) (149)
Exchange realignment PE 5 3 & (34) - (34)

At 31 December 2019 and #2019F12HA31H &

at 1 January 2020 202041 A1H 6,295 = 6,295
Deferred tax credited to the RERNF ALA

consolidated statement of Bz KR ZELEFIE

profit or loss during the (Ff5E10)

year (note 10) (581) = (581)
Exchange realignment bE W, 38 & 103 - 103
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 5,817 - 5,817
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31 December 2020

2020F12 A31H
26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 26. ELBIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
At 1 January 2019 7201941 518 8 2,088 687 2,783
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated R4 A% % 44
statement of profit or loss during Bmk ZIRE
the year g (1) (73) (206) (280)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) HE—RIBRQR
(M &E11) - @) - ()
Exchange realignment & XA - (41) - (41)
At 31 December 2019 and at 2019412 A31H
1 January 2020 K2020F1H1H 7 1,972 481 2,460
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the RERGIX)/ 5 A
consolidated statement of profit or loss RAEBERZ
during the year (note 10) IR E IR
(KF5E10) (1) (44) 242 197
Exchange realignment IE 5, 38 & = 125 = 125
At 31 December 2020 12020412431 B 6 2,053 723 2,782
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B 7% ¥R R MY & (&)
31 December 2020
202012 A31H

26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 26.
Deferred tax assets (Continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and

liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial

i FE B IR (45
IESE B A A E (1)
MEFIME ETEEHASERAM
EREBRARNEE - REHRED

position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax EOASENEERBALHRITHT :
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
2019
20194
HK$’000
FET
Net deferred tax liabilities KRB W AR R R
recognised in consolidated WIELET A REEHE
statement of financial position (5,817) (6,295)
Net deferred tax assets recognised 4R & B %k K #E R
in consolidated statement of IR IEE BEF 5
financial position 2,782 2,460
(3,035) (3,835)

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$25,087,000 (2019: HK$25,969,000), subject
to the agreement by relevant tax authorities, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the Mainland China Corporate Income Tax
Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

176 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

REEBREBEENAERTEEBEA
25,087,000/ 7T (20194F : 25,969,000
TO)(EREBR MRS HER = %8 1E
T AJERBAERELREE AT
ZARKRERBM BN BHREEMEBEEBE
WHBAREEBE —REMR EE£ER
i a1 AT AR AR SE B TH S B M i = 1 3R
BIAK HBERZSEEBERELTH
BEE -

BREFREAMOCEERBSB L) £F
Bl A MK S M NI IR B R E M N R B
HEIRMRBABKI0% MBI 2R
E B2008F1A1H & &£ & I @ B R
2007F12H31BE M & A - BINFIRE
EMBR AEEREPBE AN E BB D
o AIREEARENTENTRE - ALEEN
HRBERI0% - At - NEBERZS
P HR B A K S B9 BT B A B 5200841 A
1THREANBIADIRNKREZMNEN
i o



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()
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26.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts
of temporary differences associated with investments in

26. ELEBIE(E)

EERBEE (&)

20204 K2019%12A8318 - # £ 7t A
&= B 7 R B P K S A BT B A B B AR
BB KRE L& MAZFHENR
BRELEHB -EERE  ZEMBAF
R BRI KATEEDIRZZERF - R
2020%F K2019%12A31H - HRAH EH A
B B A R A1 & A B8 i I A gk Ut TR
EEBEEENEREEZERE SR

subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax #%104,837,0007% 7T }280,736,000/% JT °
liabilities have not been recognised were approximately

HK$104,837,000 and HK$80,736,000 at 31 December

2020 and 2019, respectively.

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B

2019
2019%F
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000/%
HK$0.10 each M HEE0.10/ JT 1) & i i 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETEERE:
720,444,312 (2019: 763,937,312) 720,444,312f%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (20194 : 763,937,312/%)
SREE00ETH L @R 72,044 76,394
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 27. BA& (&
A summary of movements in the Company’s authorised AAaIREEREBITRASEHHZ 0
and issued share capital is as follows: N
Number of
shares Share capital
KRG EE g 7
Notes HK$’000
B 3T FAT
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2019, at M2019%F1A1H -
31 December 2019, 7201912 A31H -
at 1 January 2020 and 2020F1 A1 &
at 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITMER
At 1 January 2019 MR2019F1 A1H 762,071,112 76,207
Issue of shares upon TR R TR (D
exercise of share options (@) 1,866,200 187
At 31 December 2019 and MR2019F12H31H &
at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 763,937,312 76,394
Issue of shares upon ITEEREREITRG
exercise of share options (@) 3,107,000 310
Repurchase and cancellation B Bl & 5T $5 f% (5
of shares (b) (46,600,000) (4,660)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 5318 720,444,312 72,044
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
subscriptions right attaching to 3,107,000 (2019:
1,866,200) share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.594 per share, resulting in the
issue of 3,107,000 (2019: 1,866,200) ordinary shares of
par value of HK$0.10 each (“Shares”) at a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,845,000 (2019:
HK$1,109,000). An amount of HK$4,107,000 (2019:
HK$3,440,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise
of the share options.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
repurchased 46,600,000 Shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange at a total consideration (before expenses) of
HK$52,924,000, which were cancelled during the year. The
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
par value of the repurchased Shares so cancelled. The
premium and transaction costs paid on the repurchase of
the shares of HK$48,264,000 and HK$246,000,
respectively, were charged to the share premium account.

28. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 82 to 88.

(a)

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to the written resolution of the then sole
shareholder of the Company dated 25 August 2017,
the Company reallocated its share premium account
to the contributed surplus by way of reduction of the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account to nil and transfer of the credit
amount arising from the share premium reduction to
the contributed surplus.

27. BA& (&
B -

(@ B B Z=2020F12A318 I+ F E-
3,107,00017 (20194F : 1,866,20017) [&
[% # B M /O 3R B8 4 12 3 1R0.59478 T &
T EEEITE R MEME010% T A
3,107,000/% (20194F : 1,866,2004%) &
AR (TRMD])  BESREMMBHEX
A7) 1,845,000/ 7T (20194 : 1,109,000
B JT) ° 4,107,000  JL (20194 :
3,440,000/ 7t.) E‘J*”I?Wﬂ@%ﬂ%f@é?é
HEREREERZERMDEER

(b) MEZE2020F12831B IEFE » KR A
REBBIMABRECRNKRRR)
52,924,000/% 7T H§ [2146,600,0008% A%
D WRFAKEZHE AAFHE
TR AR B B BN s i 2 Ik i M E B 4R
FETH - BRI EERRSKASD
7l £48,264,000/% 7T }%246,0007% 7T © 7
B8 0 m BRI Bk o

28. f#1E
REEBRAFEREMFENREERE
NEZSEBNFERESHMNGAERE T
KEY -

(@) BARER
ﬁfﬁ“ﬂﬁ%%—%ﬁﬁmﬂi
8A2SABMBMEEREE AR
BERNDEEREHNS @Ei%{)\ﬁ
ﬁ% AR ABROEEEZR

SHEEBET IH#IéMW&@
mE%EiZE%%%%%iMA
B o
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

180

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Statutory reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant Mainland China rules and
the subsidiaries which are domestic
in Mainland China are required to
transfer no less than 10% of their profits after
taxation, as determined under Mainland China
accounting regulations and their respective articles of
association, to the reserve funds until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before the
dividend distribution to shareholders.

regulations,
enterprises

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
share capital when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
currency exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

Other reserve
The Group’s other reserve represents the difference
between the amounts by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid to acquire an additional interest
in a subsidiary.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEAHS
1595 o B 79 Mo 5 R R ) SRR -
BRERLNECE NN BAT
ARBPEN SRS S
BRI R10%H B
BHFIFIARBARS  EER
8 4 8 )5 B A 950% o It 2
4 2 4R R 0 3R TR PR B
77 o

BRERAE
BREFEREC RO M ERITE
B ERNATE  WHEHRR
ffsE2.4 50 Bt 2 /O & 5t BOR AT i
—SEE - X2 BH N EREEKE
BORERBEERS KN EEE
Pl 2] B 2 150 0% W B 8 B E AR R 0
R o

BE 508 B 1 18
ERRBEERRBBINERMB
BERZBEEENEHINEELE
L

Hftb f# 18
AEENWEMERESKENE R
FIEEHME S T H IR A S AE Y
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 29. R#H XA+

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
similar to the terms of the Share Option Scheme except
that () no further options could be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme established prior to the
Listing Date; and (i) the exercise price and the exercise
period of the share options are different as further
detailed below.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the
Company’s executive directors and other employees of
the Group. The Scheme were approved and adopted on
15 December 2017 (“Adoption Date”). The Share Option
Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from the Listing Date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the Listing
Date. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Share Option Schemes within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

issued and

ARRARRE —BERAFREEHBRE
Bl ((BERAFRBEEHERESS R
— IR A B ([RE A At 81 ) (A T8
[%FatEl]) Uk ERHAEEZ
BOKINERMERNAERSEE B
RAFIEERERER 8/ 2R A
B AR AT SR IR AR L - ()T REBRE
£ B AT E B B IR AR E R B
RERTEIR L A (i) B AR M 1T (E(E
RATEHARBRSN R T XEFL

ZEFENEERSEERLEARARRH
TEERAEBEMES - ZFFER
201712158 ([ & B H1)) B #t E &
B o BRBITRESHSBET O - AR AE T 2
BRAEE LT AR AHI0F -

B REBRET S AR RITER
BREETERMSEOBRMHEE &%
HERARBRLHHEHEHTREO K
10% » REM12ME A BERIEERED
BORARTTEREASNERAER
SEENENEE REITHEEBALQ
BRI A 2 AT B91% o Efa
— IR Ut TR R BR A R R A A X
RAE LS ERALE -
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29.

182

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Share options granted to a director,
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates would result in the total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

chief executive or

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company.

Share Option Scheme

The offer of a grant of share option under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 7 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme is
determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options. The exercise price of share options under
the Share Option Scheme is determinable by the
directors, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer of the share options, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 29. R XS (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, no
options have been grated or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is HK$0.594 per share and the
share options are exercisable commencing on the day
faling on the Listing Date and ending on the day
immediately before the tenth anniversary of the Listing
Date.

The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were outstanding during the year:

BREE(E)

H 220194 K&2020%F12A31H [EF & -
MEREEREFIRLXBFERHE
% #E o

BXNMABRENBERETS
BREEBRXAREENBERETE  BR
EONTTEE/ER0594BTT  HBEKRE
AREMAMEAREEER EHAM
mtEER — BT -

FA - REERAFEE R RES S
EREERRITEMNBERERT

2019
20194F
Weighted
average
exercise Number of
price options
5
TEE  ERESEA
HKS$ per
share
BRET
At 1 January »1A18 0.594 3,553,800 0.594 6,192,600
Exercised during the year R FERITE 0.594 (3,107,000) 0.594 (1,866,200)
Forfeited during the year R E AR IR 0.594 (98,000) 0.594 (772,600)
At 31 December »W12A318 0.594 348,800 0.594 3,553,800

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised for the year ended
31 December 2020 was HK$1.08 (2019: HK$1.37) per
share.

RNE E2020F12A31H IFFE - 217
BRERTEAENNETEHRESAS
f%1.087 T (201945 : 1.378 L) °
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme granted to the Company’s executive directors
and other employees of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set below:

20, RPZAF (&

BERLAHBENBRESS(E)

MR2020F12A31H B F AR AIENITE
ERAEBEMEENE X AREER

BRI MFBHIMT

As at  Exercised Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant price 2020 the year the year 2020 Exercise period
#2020 #2020
ARA BRLAH 1RE 1A18 FRTE FRRK 12A318  1EH
Executive directors
HTES
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 412,800 (412,800) - — 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
SRLEE 2018F4 3198 0594 7T 2019F5 8118 E202065A 108
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 550,400 (550,400) - — 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
2018F4 3198 0594 7T 2020F5 8118 E2021F5A 108
Ms. Fan Yee Man 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 367,200 (367,200) - — 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
BE5MA 2018F4 3198 0594 7T 2020F5 8118 E2021F5A 108
Other employees 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 30,000 - (30,000) — 11 May 2018 to 10 May 2019
HitES 2018F4 3198 0594 7T 2018F58 118 E2019F5A 108
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 423,000 (374,200) (48,800) — 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
201848190 0.594% 7T 2019F5R11H £2020F5810H
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 1,770,400 (1,402,400) (19,200) 348,800 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
2018F4 3198 0594 7T 2020658118 E2021F5A 108

184
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 20. B3 (&

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Group recognised an equity-settled share option
expense of HK$593,000 (2019: HK$2,443,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The 3,107,000 share options exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 1,866,200) resulted in
the issue of 3,107,000 (2019: 1,866,200) ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.10 each and new share capital
of HK$310,000 (2019: HK$187,000) and share premium of
HK$5,642,000 (2019: HK$3,440,000), as further detailed
in Note 27.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 348,800
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 348,800 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$35,000 and share premium of HK$172,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 201,600 share options outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.03% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

BRAAHBRENBRETE(E)

RE E2020F12A31B I FE - A& E
e 3R AR A 45 T B8 IR 42 B 52593,00078 7T
(2019%F : 2,443,000 JT) °

P # £20206F128318 |t F E - 17 {F
3,107,0001 (20194F : 1,866,20017 ) &8 A%
OB B % 173,107,0000% (20194 :
1,866,2000% ) & f% [ {50.10/8 LK) AN A )
T @Rk W E £ ¥ AR Z4<310,000% T
(20194 : 187,000/ 7t) & B 1p % (&
5,642,000/ JT (20194F : 3,440,000/ JT)
(NP FE27FT o — 2P ) o

F2020F12A31H AR RIREEH XA
i % & B B8 IR B 51 £1 /5348,80017 f# A% 1
RIEITHE - BREBEARFMNIRITERNERE -
2 TE 1T 8 R AT 18 /Y B AR 0 S 2 B A
B4 17848,800fk AN A E @A - WREINE
A 1% 735,000/ 7T K f% 17 4 B 172,000/%
7T (REFEITRE) »

RARAERETBHRRB B KQFR
BB R AR S A B IR T 8)5201,600
B I W RTTE - HERAR AN
H 2 %17 1 £70.03% °
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. EBERERME
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) XEEFBEEXS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the B E2020F12A31H L FE - A&
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets ERmENEEZTHESREEFER
and lease liabilities of HK$121,000 (2019: REENMEBENIBREESFE
HK$20,637,000) and HK$121,000 (2019: 121,000/ 7T (20194 : 20,637,000
HK$20,637,000), respectively, in respect of lease % o) K&121,000% T (20194 :
arrangements for premises. 20,637,000/ 7T) °
(b) Change in liabilities arising from financing (b) REMETBNEBENES
activities
The table below details the cash flows and non-cash THRAMIEAEEREREEH
changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from MEBENRERERERESEF -
financing activities. Except as disclosed below, there BRRTIXHEEN  NEEKRER
were no non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities BEINEBEMEIFERSEE -

arising from financing activities.

2020 2020%F

At 31 December 2019 and MR2019%F12A318 &

at 1 January 2020 202041 A1H 26,154 27,675
Financing cash flows MERSRKE (14,060) (14,933)
Non-cash changes FEH & &

New leases FHEE = 121
Accretion of interest MEEE - 998
COVID-19-related rent A8 A 48 T HICOVID-19

concessions from lessors HERE = (619)
Effect of changes in foreign  [EXREEHH &

exchange rates = 120
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 12,094 13,362
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(b) Change in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

30.

RERERERME (F)

(b) REMEETBDNEENEE ()

2019 20194
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
T ERITER HEBRE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
At 1 January 2019 7R2019F1H1H 156,220 18,240
Financing cash flows MERESRE (122,664) (11,942)
Non-cash changes B 2 EE)
New leases s — 20,637
Accretion of interest MEE K — 990
Disposal of a subsidiary & — BB A A
(note 11) (F$7E11) (7,361) (260)
Effect of changes in foreign  [EXE &ML
exchange rates 41) 10
At 31 December 2019 2019512 H31H 26,154 27,675
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31.

32.

188

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, the
Group was not able to obtain the real estate ownership
certificate for two warehouses located in the Mainland
China with the carrying amounts of HK$653,000 and
HK$601,000, respectively, before accumulated
depreciation of HK$653,000 and HK$601,000,
respectively. As the Group completed the construction of
the relevant warehouses and commenced usage without
obtaining the necessary construction planning permit and
construction commencement permit prior to the
construction and did not complete the filing of the
necessary construction completion reports with the
relevant authorities, the Group may be requested by the
relevant authorities to demolish the construction and is
subject to a maximum penalty amounting to
RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to HK$1,569,000) (2019:
RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to HK$1,473,000)). Having
considered the current practice of the relevant authorities
and the advice from the Group’s legal counsel, the
directors of the Company believe that it is not probable
that the relevant authorities will impose the penalty. In
addition, the directors of the Company considered the
cost of demolishment of the two warehouses is not
material to the Group. Accordingly, no provision for the
relevant liability has been made.

COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

31.

32.

RAREE

B 220194 K2020F12A31H It F & -
AN 5 B AR AE b AR AL 74 AP B b BR T
7 $11653,000/% 7T 601,000 7T H) & & BR
SRIWEMEES AKE2AFTEET
B % 5l 5653,0007% 7t &601,000/% 7T ° £
ERERBEREELFRBERAA - A%
EARAEBEBRIANESHAENERLER
EFFAI R BETRMIFA - FARTK
MAAERBERMENR I RE At
AEAEE e E R A EERDZIEREE
IR TAHEISRETREARKE
1,321,0007T (8 & 71,569,0007% JT)
(20194 : A R #1,321,0007t (4 & »
1,473,000 7)) - EE R BEBEE RN E
A ERAEBEZEZBERIIEHOER
& - AN2 R E F 815 A8 B BE BE 0 51 5K
WgE K LN KRR EERAFH
ZREERENRKAHAEBR YT TEK-
Hit - WESAAES ErHREE -

iR
AEERNRERIRE FFIE KA -

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAET

Contracted, but not provided for
in respect of:
Property, plant and equipment

ME - BB k&G

LA TNIER BRI A B R

4,329

6,193
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. EBEBEARS
(@) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and (@) FRULF R H A& 5 P aF it /Y
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial R LHEREHRIN RER - K
statements, the Group had the following SEHEANAE NVREBEEMEHT
transactions based on terms mutually agreed terms IR FETHRS

with related parties during the year:

2019
20194
HK$'000
Bt & FHET
Lease expenses paid to a MRBB AR X NHWHEE
related company (note) X (M 5E) 1,860 1,860
Note: Mr. Wong Tat Tong (“Mr. Wong”), a director and the ek : RAREERERRAEESL
beneficial shareholder of the Company, is the E(TEEE]D BZBE A RE
controlling shareholder of this related company. f& A% 3 o
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) XEEXTEEBEAENEMH
of the Group
2019
20194
HK$’'000
FHET
Short term employee benefits HHEB®RA 15,530 14,487
Equity-settled share option expense LA B&#E 45 & & B8 IR 59 2 256 895
Pension scheme contributions RIARSFEIHER
(defined contribution schemes) (REHEKETE) 839 409
16,625 15,791
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s ARESERETEZTHEMH I
remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the financial 1B RIS IR MY a8 58 -
statement.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 34. €T H — RERE D
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHER SE2RTANEKREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period wn

are as follows:
Financial assets EREE

Loans and receivables

EXRKREWRKIE

2019

2019%F

HK$'000

FAT

Trade receivables g 5 e E 111,114 118,855
Financial assets included in FTATENRIE - e REAM LY

prepayments, deposits and HENERMEE

other receivables 8,000 4,845

Cash and cash equivalents HehREEED 276,807 315,211

395,921 438,911
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. €@ I B — ®E3 &5 (&)

(Continued)
Financial liabilities ctREE
As at 31 December 2020 72020128318
Derivative financial instruments T4 & @ T A 491 - 491
Trade payables B 5 kR - 51,595 51,595
Financial liabilities included in FPAERT AR EA

accruals and other payables ERFIBENEREE - 30,977 30,977
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t & R 17 & % - 12,094 12,094
Lease liabilities HEEBE = 13,362 13,362

491 108,028 108,519

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ g T A 568 — 568
Trade payables B 5 R 5IE - 73,567 73,567
Financial liabilities included in FFAER RIERE A

accruals and other payables ENRENSBAE - 35,149 35,149
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 8 iR 17 & - 26,154 26,154
Lease liabilities HEBE - 27,675 27,675

568 162,545 163,113
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35.

192

FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
accruals and other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments or
the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

in a current transaction between willing

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits
have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using the rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
Derivative financial instruments, including foreign currency
swaps, are measured using valuation techniques similar to
swap models, The
models incorporate various market observable inputs
including credit quality of counterparty and exchange
rates. The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
swaps are the same as their fair values.

using present value calculations.
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2020412 A31H
35. FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE 3B. eMIANAFERAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
There were no financial assets measured at fair value as R2019K%2020%F 124318 I & LA A F &
at 31 December 2019 and 2020. FFEMESEEEE-
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHFALEESRTAN A FEGTE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &4 :
Liabilities measured at fair value BRAFEFTENERE
Derivative financial fTEe@MIT A
instruments
As at 31 December 2020 7H20205
12A31H = 491 = 491
As at 31 December 2019 20194
12A31H = 568 = 568
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA FERE_ECESEEBQ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no FTEFE BE-ZEhEEASELS
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets MEERSREE(2019F | &) -

and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. Management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

36. ¥HXEAREEERREK

AEENTESRIAREREER S
EBYEFRRITER ZFEMIA
ZEIBEMAMASENEZETRE

BAKBENERTAEENTEZRR R
MERRERR - INERE  EERRLREBE
R e i%A*ﬁuTIHﬁ% NI T F
Bt 2 & 3% %% TR R B H KR

A = = B
FMERERE-"EHERIANRKRESR
BRI REHRMSMNEESHMEE - A&
lﬁﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬂ?m@)ﬂ T BHEAE
B BRITERERE EEEERMNE
MO WEAEREREREHEANEK
g o

TEHBERAHLBEREHFTEER
T AEERBARAYHENSET
B 2 B ) BUBE (RIBYDT BRTT KR

HK$ 78T
HK$ BT
RMB AREE
RMB AR

).
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/(decrease)
basis point in profit before tax
22 b
(—Fﬁé) Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ*ﬂ ﬂu/(/ﬁd\
2019
2019%F
HK$’000
FET
50 176 45
(50) (176) (45)
50 70 52
(50) (70) (52)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. AR EEAEERKE(Z)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by
operating units
functional currencies. The majority of the Group’s foreign
currency purchase transactions are denominated in US
dollar (“US$”). On the other hand,
disbursements are mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB.
As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Company does not
anticipate significant movements in the US$/HK$
exchange rates and the exposure on foreign currency risk
is not material.

in currencies other than the unit’s

the sales and

The Group’s risk management principles with regard to its
foreign currency denominated monetary assets, liabilities,
commitments, and cash flows is to match as far as
possible the values of such assets and cash flows against
similarly denominated liabilities and cash flows. Decisions
on either holding net short or long positions in foreign
currency denominated monetary assets or liabilities are
taken on case-by-case basis and by taking into
consideration the amount and duration of the expenses,
market volatility, economic trends and requirements of the
business.

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG

S H5 L B

AEFBRAGRZEEKRR ZERART
EHNEEEUNAENREEE NI 2 E
BETEEMESL AKBEAXHOINE
RBXZGUAET(ETDFAE-Z—7
- HELRIBEIAEERBTREARE
AHE - ARB TR R TR - A AR A
ELABTHNERSAGHRERE
B FTEBROINERRIETERX -

REBHUIMEAENERBEE - 8F -
EEREeRENRREERR  5F
ErkzEEELR R REEBBLUGE
MEBEEMRERENEE REBEFINE
AAENEBREERRETAFEREX
HRERE  DREARERL A
M ceB MR  Tm5KE  EES8
EREBHBERMMEDL -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. UKEABREEBERKEK(Z)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SRR (E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TREBVRBMEPREMBEHAME S
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in BAEBRT  NEE AR A& T &
the Euro (“EUR”), Swiss Franc (“SFR”) and RMB exchange Bt (BTl T AR ([3R BB &R A
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the REEXNSEAEEHNFRE -

Group’s profit before tax.

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/(decrease)
exchange rate in profit before tax
S Tl b
(N E&) BR B A 0% R 18 0O &)
2019
20194
HK$’000
FET
If HK$ weakens against EUR WG BITEBITERE 5% 406 3
If HK$ strengthens against EUR it & /8 7T % BT FHE (5%) (406) ®3)
If HK$ weakens against SFR fmE BT in B E 5% 36 (84)
If HK$ strengthens against SFR il & /8 7T 5% I BF FHE (5%) (36) 84
If HK$ weakens against RMB WEBLLARKE
1E 5% 417 541
If HK$ strengthens against RMB  fifi & 78 7T 3 A R 8
1B (5%) (417) (541)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. FEEREEEERBE(EZ)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

Trade receivables* 2 P rWHIE =
Financial assets included in FABRRE
prepayments, deposits and "o REAMER

other receivables — normal" HIEMEREE

FERRE
AEBEERRUTEEERINE=7
ETRS - ARBEBRERTE  FTEREE
EMETRINER HEARIEER
BERRF o MO AEEFEEREWFOR
e WEmMHBRAREEKRAR -

B AR R FRE TR

TRINTREASENGEERRENEER
EELBEERRIIEHEOZARRE
TEZEUNEBEHNERABKE BRIEFHM
EXMMEBAFTRBEZRNAKE ) UKk
R12A3TEHMFE RS R -EE2EBRESEA
MNemEERBTMARE -

R2020%F 12 H31H

- - 119,895 119,895

- I% 8,000 = = = 8,000
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBeZEEY 276,807 - - - 276,807
284,807 = = 119,895 404,702
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

36. UKEABEZEREERBE(E)

As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A & 4
FEBB 2HEHEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—& F-® Bl B A% mEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAEL TAEL TEL TEL FAET
Trade receivables” B 5 R RE - - - 126,940 126,940
Financial assets included in ~ EF AFER A -
prepayments, deposits and ReEREMER
other receivables — normal'  FBRSREE
- R 4,845 - - - 4,845
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 315,211 - - - 315,211
320,056 - - 126,940 446,996
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * MAEERBECREEZNE SRR

simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 18.

" The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. AR EEAEERKE(Z)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry segment. As at the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as
18% (2019: 16%) and 41% (2019: 38%) of the Group’s
total trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors from continuing
operations, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate
funds to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms. In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group has been maintaining a cash pooling system where
excess liquid is centralised internally through inter-group
accounts. Depending on the specific requirements of each
funding agreement, funding for the Group’s operating
companies may be sourced directly from the Group’s
bankers or indirectly through the Company.

R2019F12H31H (&)
HRASEERELRTEEERTNE
ZHETRS INEZERR -EES
RRBRDERER EFT - EBEERT
FRRER - NMEHEAKR AKEE—
EREESTRR 95 A18% (2019
F 1 16% ) M41% (20194 : 38% ) » T} &
KAEBERBELCENREREBARRAK
BB ARKIE -

BRAKEREE 5 EKRFENEER
BEVE - T EBE REETHBEHR
fi s 184% B8 o

RBE<ER

AEENEERBREXRCES UM
HERALRARHESERK - REER
PETER AEE-—BEHEFRE LR
B BEBEARFREPN AT
PEFGBORDES -RFBZESWH
MEARBZRME AREHNZERAA
EERASENERRITHBEEBA
NABMEER -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments.

31 December 2020

36. WHEMEEEBERBK(E)

RBESER(E)
TREINBEMERAEESRAEE
REBEAHRBBAROBHER

2020%F12H31H

Trade payables 2 5 RIE 51,595 - - 51,595
Financial liabilities A A RUIA K
included in accruals  Eth fB {4 3k 1E
and other payables ReEmaE 30,977 - - 30,977
Interest-bearing bank & 8 8 17 18 3
borrowings 12,094 = = 12,094
Lease liabilities HERE 3,290 5,137 4,935 13,362
97,956 5,137 4,935 108,028
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R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2020

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder’s value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to the
shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue new
shares. The Group is required to comply with certain
externally imposed capital requirements as set out in
certain banking facility letters. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG

2020412 A31H
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. XEKMEEEERKE(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRM(EZ)
31 December 2019 2019412531H
On demand/
Less than 3to 12 More than
3 Months months 1 year Total
BwEKXR,/
3@ A ™A 3Z12{8 A Z 1 E &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F& T FHET FETT F& T
Trade payables 2 5 A RUR 73,567 — — 73,567
Financial liabilities AR HRIE R
included in accruals H b & 5018
and other payables NeEmasE 35,149 — — 35,149
Interest-bearing bank & B R 17 &K
borrowings 26,154 - - 26,154
Lease liabilities HEBE 4,099 10,867 12,709 27,675
138,969 10,867 12,709 162,545
Capital management EXREE

AEEEREANEZAEREREAS
BEERHEZE UHTREEARAL XN
XFEEBLEERSKRREE-

AEEBEBHEEALEE WRELERK
N EBRIEEEENRRSREHE
TR - BEFIARELRER  ~5E
AREeFAEXNTRENRE - MKRRER
BREBARLBITHRG - AEBE/HESE
A TRITRBE RAAENSE THNEBHEM
B & KRR E o B £2020%F 2019912 A
SIBLEFETEHUEREEANER K
RRBBEEHEE o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is

the ratio of interest-bearing bank borrowings to total
shareholders’ equity. Total shareholders’ equity comprises

all components of equity attributable to owners of the
parent. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio

at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of

the reporting periods were as follows:

BHEEAREEBRREEE)

EXREHE(E)
AEBEFERERNABL X (B RRITE
REBRESAROLR)ERER K
REDABBREARER ARERE
MEFEE AEENERERKELRE
BLEREFNRAEKFE RBEHRE
BEARBELERMT :

2019

2019%F

HK$'000

FAET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings & B8R 1T & &K 12,094 26,154
Total equity attributable to owners NAEB AR EERE

of the parent 552,503 549,735

Gearing ratio BERABELE 2.2% 4.8%
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. &2 & i B B MR R &
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RKARRNBEHBROPERRLRER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: mr

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment IE R - 1,765
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIMIKE 78,563 78,563
Total non-current assets R EERTE 78,563 80,328
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments and deposits ERNRERES 286 356
Due from subsidiaries JE W Bt B8 & 7 394,256 448,328
Tax recoverable CIRLQERE - 150
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEED 9,023 1,816
Total current assets mBEELE 403,565 450,650
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accruals fESt 3R IE 2,473 2,969
Lease liabilities HERE - 1,796
Tax payable FE A B IR 173 —
Total current liabilities MEBEERE 2,646 4,765
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 400,919 445,885
Net assets BEFE 479,482 526,213
EQUITY R
Share capital % Zx 72,044 76,394
Reserves (note) & (M) 407,438 449,819
Total equity e 479,482 526,213

CECFFFH BRBEBRERARAG 203




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. A28l B R K (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B 5E -

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AArfEEBOBERT :

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 1R 254,311 123,678 4,235 55,882 438,006

Total comprehensive income for  FE 2 E KA L5

the year - - - 71,759 71,759
Dividends ) - - - 63,311) 63,311)
Equity-settled share option PARR R 45 5 o B AR i

arrangements ZH - - 2,443 - 2,443
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T BERHERS 1T AR

share options 3,440 - (2,518) - 922
Transfer of share option reserve R ERERHEEE

upon forfeiture of share options BG4 15 - - (80) 80 -
At 31 December 2019 and 722019512A318 &

at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 257,751 123,578 4,080 64,410 449,819

Total comprehensive income for & 2 @K A A%

the year o = = 40,454 40,454
Dividends i & - - - (36,453) (36,453)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 77 i B AE RS 2 17 10

share options 5,642 = (4,107) = 1,535
Shares repurchased and cancelled %17 B 2] o 53 88 (48,510) - - - (48,510)
Equity-settled share option NIREEE R ERE

arrangement T = = 593 = 593
Transfer of share option reserve SRR EREE S

upon forfeiture of share options BB AR #E 1 = - (107) 107 -
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A31H 214,883 123,578 459 68,518 407,438

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 38. HMIEBMBEHE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised SRR N2021F3H4H B EE 2 #t &
for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2021. NIRRT o
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEBRBERFATBRFENEEALEE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BENMIIFEBEFHE (HHEEAD TIBLER
years, as extracted from the published audited financial BIBHEICDKEE E5 E#H D E) &H 50
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out T °

below.
A SUMMARY OF RESULTS EEBRE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31B L EE
2019 2018 2017 2016

2019 2018%F 20174 20164
(HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(FEL) (F&L) (F&L) (F&T)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS B EKEX%K

REVENUE A 638,507 784,998 831,072 728,159 651,485
Cost of sales 448 B A (375,453)  (475,166)  (516,804)  (459,648)  (390,523)
Gross profit EA 263,054 309,832 314,178 268,511 260,962
Other income and gains, net  EfMIKA Kz 58 15,491 5,127 2,968 3,997 16,352
Selling and distribution HERDHRAX

expenses (107,223)  (115,863)  (117,147)  (108,913)  (106,020)
Administrative expenses THAX (74,261) (79,204) (91,770)  (101,276) (79,037)
Other expenses, net H A X F 58 (3,841) (5,104) (11,068) (1,770) (11,689)
Finance costs & A (1,441) (3,509) (4,513) (3,184) (3,099)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM &K XKBRHA

CONTINUING gl
OPERATIONS 91,779 111,279 92,648 57,365 77,469
Income tax expense FTE A (14,982) (21,466) (19,408) (14,688) (16,733)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR HFEREXBNER

FROM CONTINUING gl

OPERATIONS 76,797 89,813 73,240 42 677 60,736
DISCONTINUED BRIEEEEK

OPERATIONS
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE CRIEEEERER

YEAR FROM (B8, &

DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS - (12,523) 4,240 5,697 4,967
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERREFA 76,797 77,290 77,480 48,374 65,703
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LFMBRE (&)

A SUMMARY OF RESULTS (Continued)

REBR(#E

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31ALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
2019 20184 20174 20164
(HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F&x) (FEx) (FER) (FERL
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the parent NEIE 2SN
Profit for the year from FECEET
continuing operations F N A 76,797 89,813 73,240 42 677 61,141
(Loss)/profit for the year BRIEEEEE
from discontinued FR(BE)/
operations i A - (14,335) 2,544 3,418 3,805
Profit for the year F A s A 76,797 75,478 75,784 46,095 64,946
Non-controlling interests R ER
Loss for the year from SECEET
continuing operations FABE = - - - (409)
Profit/(loss) for the year BRIEEEER
from discontinued FREHM,/
operations (B#8) - 1,812 1,696 2,279 1,162
Profit/(loss) for the year FRHEF
(E18) - 1,812 1,696 2,279 757
76,797 77,290 77,480 48,374 65,703
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LFMBRE (&)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERARE

As at 31 December

MW128318
2019 2018 2017 2016
2019 20184 20174 20164
(HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F#&T) (F#&mx) (F#&mx) (T
Non-current assets FRBEE 162,020 165,632 142,127 147,473 151,451
Current assets TREEE 522,720 572,871 719,414 433,988 439,913
Current liabilities TEaE 121,485 169,764 284,226 291,960 245,784
Net current assets TMEEEFE 401,235 403,107 435,188 142,028 194,129
Non-current liabilities ERE AR 10,752 19,004 22,088 57,441 48,282
Net assets BEEE 552,503 549,735 554,327 232,060 297,298
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of & 2R # A A
the parent JE b #E 25 552,503 549,735 536,508 214,169 279,253
Non-controlling interests FERER - - 17,819 17,891 18,045
552,503 549,735 554,327 232,060 297,298
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LFMBRE (&)

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

EEUHEEER

As at and for the year ended 31 December
M12A3MEBEREZE12A31BLFE

2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 20184 20174 20164
Profitability ratios BERgE L=
Return on equity™ 25 B FR O 13.9% 13.7% 14.1% 21.5% 23.3%
Return on assets® & E B ;@ 11.2% 10.5% 9.0% 8.3% 11.1%
Liquidity ratios RBESLE
Current ratio® B L KO 4.3 3.4 2.5 1.5 1.8
Quick ratio® RB) L @ 3.3 2.6 1.8 0.8 1.2
Capital adequacy ratios X A&ZFELL=
Gearing ratio® BEAGBHE X 2.2% 4.8% 29.1% 89.4% 62.3%
Net cash/(debt) to equity Be  (8E)F
ratio® BE M 25 fL RO 47.9% 52.6% 32.1% (68.1)% (45.0)%
Notes: 5T

1)

208

Return on equity represents profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent as of the end of the same year.

Return on assets represents profit for the year as a percentage
of total assets as of the end of the same period.

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities
as of the end of the year.

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by
current liabilities as of the end of the year.

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Total debt represents interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent at the end of the year. Net
debt represents interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and
cash equivalents.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

BabRESARERAREFEENRA
FREBARHEBABRERENALD

BENREFREENERASREESRENST
DL e

MBLLERERFRORBDEERARD B

&

BYBLERERFERNRBDEERTER A
mBEE -

BERBUXASNEBABERUGARE
BARMGEER - BEFEREFTRBRITER

BEFEESLIHEENFRNEL FEE
NERBIHE ARG ER BB FEEE
RITEF BERERRSEFEY -



Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited
EEERERBERAT

(Incorporated under the laws of Bermuda with limited liability)

TWG CRBEREEEMRINBRAR)
Stock Code BR#LEE : 2119

# This annual report is printed on environmental paper

O pERUBRAE DR



	Cover
	Contents
	Definitions
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover

